POLITECNICO DI TORINO

Master Degree in Biomedical Engineering



Master Degree Thesis

Making Heritage Accessible: Museums and Heritage Building Information Modelling Applied to Neurodiversity Cases

Supervisors

Candidate

Prof. Anna OSELLO

Cosimo LORUSSO

October 2023

Abstract

According to the latest agenda issued by the International Council of Museums (ICOM) – the world's leading organization for museums – cultural venues shall be intended as places where inclusion must hold a hegemonic place of attention throughout the curation, exhibition, and delivery phases. In addition to architectural barriers – formalized since the late 1960s in the Italian law and practices - such venues must indeed consider neurodivergence as a new variable of inclusion and accessibility – aided by the digitization of the cultural heritage, which is yet another priority of this new agenda. Indeed, between 15 and 20% of the world population hold a form of neurodiversity – thus altering the perception and reception of cultural experiences, which are often designed *from* and *to* the perspective of neurotypical individuals.

Drawing from the provisions set by the ICOM, prioritizing both inclusion and digitization, this thesis seeks to provide a project that operates on a dual theoretical and practical level. The former gathers theories of neurodiversity, cognitive models, and digital learning methodologies applied to the cultural heritage. The latter is designed to conceptualize, develop, and deliver an actual apps for one of Turin's most prestigious museums, Palazzo Carignano. Such apps hybridize 3.0 technologies like Augmented and Virtual Realities (AR and VR), as well as Building Information Modelling (BIM). As the apps were developed through a Design Thinking approach – whereby the app and the functionalities it provides can be integrated and amended throughout the process - the application will be delivered as a fully-functional product with a BIM model of the Palazzo and with a provisional version of both the AR and VR views.

The app was conceptualized and developed on the basis of an hypothetical individual with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and was revised by a multidisciplinary board of professionals and validating institutions – i.e., the Direzione Regionale dei Musei (the Regional Authority for Museums), a specialized neurologist (Dr. Keller), as well as an association dedicated to autism (Centro Regionale Disturbi Spettro Autistico, ANGSA and Cuori Blu). The successful development of the app will lead to its actual adoption at Palazzo Carignano and also further potential adapation by other venues belonging to the same Regional Museum Authority. Its mobile-based development and functioning indeed democratizes access, cost, maintenance, and accessibility versus those apps and products created for often inaccessible technologies designed for devices such as VR headsets, 3D holographic display, or *similia*. Despite the promising future applications, the app may benefit from further biomedical integrations, improvements, and amendments, which may indeed be the very subject(s) of further doctoral studies – which would take place in the world's most prestigious cultural destinations, Italy, which however, at times, fail at providing access to all.

Acknowledgements

I express my heartfelt gratitude to Professor Osello for providing me with the opportunity to delve into the subject of inclusion within museums, which may initially appear distant from my academic background in biomedical engineering. I extend my sincere thanks to all my colleagues at the Drawing to the Future Department for introducing me to the multifaceted world of BIM.

Furthermore, I would like to express my deep appreciation to my family for their unwavering support and patience throughout my university journey, which had its share of challenges but ultimately led to my graduation. To my friends, I want to convey that you are already a part of my family, and I am truly grateful for your presence. I extend a heartfelt thank you to everyone involved in this journey.

"Diversity is being invited to the party; inclusion is being asked to dance." Vernā Myers



Table of Contents

Li	List of Tables IX										
Li	List of Figures x										
A	Acronyms XVII										
1	Intr Too 1.1	oduction to Museums, Neurodivergence, and Digital Inclusion 1 s 1 When Museums Became Aware of Inclusion and Diversity 1 1 How Biomodical Engineering Mosts Museums 1									
	1.3	Clarifying the Semiotics of this Study: Definitions, Subjects, and Players 7 1.3.1 Museum and Visitors 7 1.3.2 Sustainable Development Goals (2030 Agenda) 7 1.3.3 Autism Spectrum Disorders 10 1.3.4 Brief History and Deontological Acknowledgment of the Term 14 1.3.5 Accessibility and Inclusion within Museum Practices 16 1.3.6 Available Digitals Tools for Museum Expiriences 17 1.3.7 Virtual and Augmented Reality 18 1.3.8 Building Information Modeling 21 1.3.9 Heritage Building Information Modeling 25									
2	Stat 2.1 2.2 2.3	e of the art27International Miscellaneous Case Study & Best Practices28Experiences from Italy Scenario34Strategies Employed: Conclusion36									
3	Cas 3.1	9 study 38 Palazzo Carignano 38 3.1.1 Accessibility analysis 39									

4	Mat	terials	and Methods	41							
	4.1	Unity		42							
	4.2	Unity	Editor	42							
	4.3	Unity	Engine	43							
		4.3.1	Physics	43							
		4.3.2	User Interface	44							
		4.3.3	Scripting	45							
	4.4	Buildi	ng Information Model	47							
		4.4.1	Heritage Building Information Modelling Application	50							
	4.5	Design	n Thinking	51							
		4.5.1	Understanding the Human-Needs	52							
		4.5.2	Define the problem	53							
		4.5.3	Potential Solutions	55							
	4.6	Video	Modeling	57							
	4.7	Mobil	e App	62							
		4.7.1	Use Case Diagram	63							
		4.7.2	Actors: Need to Integrate the Application Into a Practical								
			Context	65							
		4.7.3	Description of Use Cases	68							
		4.7.4	Platforms	83							
		4.7.5	Guides for all actors	83							
	4.8	Augm	ented Reality Experience	85							
		4.8.1	Framework for Augmented Reality in Unity	85							
		4.8.2	Image Tracking	86							
4.9 Virtual Reality Experience											
		4.9.1	Hardware for Virtual Reality	91							
		4.9.2	Framework for Virtual Reality in Unity	93							
4.9.3 Virtual Environment											
		4.9.4	Avatar	95							
5	Results and discussion 99										
		5.0.1	Meeting of December 5, 2022	99							
		5.0.2	Meeting of May 17, 2023 \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots	99							
		5.0.3	Meeting of May 29, 2023 \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots	100							
	5.1	Users	feedback	100							
		5.1.1	Building Information Model Resolution	101							
		5.1.2	Mobile App	101							
		5.1.3	Virtual Reality Experience	105							
6	Con	clusio	n	107							

Α	Guide for Museum Staff	109
в	Guide for Users	114
\mathbf{C}	Guide for IT staff	124
Bil	oliography	156

List of Tables

1.1	Comparison of Google Cardboard, HTC Vive Pro 2, and Meta Quest 2	20
2.1	Compilation of strategies used to increase accessibility within muse- ums around the world.	36
$4.1 \\ 4.2$	Version of Unity used	42
4.3	implemented here	55
4.4	Tools and digital strategies are shown for each step of the post-visit phase. All highlighted digital solutions refer to those that will be	56
4.5	implemented here	56 85
5.1	Average accessibility scores collected from 10 subjects for each feature exposed by the app	105

List of Figures

1.1	Christo and Jeanne-Claude, Wrapped Kunsthalle, 1968, Bern, Switzer-	
	land [8]	2
1.2	First Global Presentation of the ICOM, 1946, Paris [10]	3
1.3	ICOM Summit in Moscow-Leningrad, Russia, 1977 [10]	3
1.4	ICOM Summit in Buenos Aires, Argentina, 1986 [10]	4
1.5	A logic model linking the arts with health [25]	8
1.6	The museum must takes care of the visitor	10
1.7	ARASAAC pictogram: autism	11
1.8	Separate diagnosis in DSM-IV that are now under the umbrella of	
	autism spectrum disorder in DSM-V [37]	12
1.9	This PrimeView provides a concise overview of the management	
	strategies for autism spectrum disorder, a neurodevelopmental con-	
	dition that commonly presents during childhood [49]	14
1.10	Differences between AR, MR and VR [69]	18
1.11	The 2022 subdivision of the global VR market shows one-third	
	greater use in gaming and health.[74]	19
1.12	Representative diagram of the difference in collaboration between	
	traditional and BIM.	22
1.13	IFC file includes both, geometry and data [80]	22
1.14	Entity inheritance of IfcRoot [81]	23
1.15	Entity inheritance of <i>IfcObjectDefinition</i> [82]	23
1.16	Logical description of a single IFC project [83]	24
21	The solutions adopted by Cornwall's Regimental Museum are: (2 1a)	
2.1	Social Narrative: (2.1b) Sensory Map: (2.1c) Sensory Bag	28
2.2	Preview of the social history provided by the Natural History Mu-	-0
2.2	seum of London in PDF format [93].	29
2.3	3D model of the Van Gogh museum present at the entrance	30
2.4	Some of the solutions adopted by the Met's Museum are: (4.40a)	
	Social Narrative; (4.40b) Sensory Map	31

2.5	The solutions adopted by Guggenheim Museum are: (2.6a) Visual Schedule: (2.6b) Social Narrative: (2.6c) Sensory Map	32
2.6	(2.6a) Infiniteach company logo; (2.6b) Logo of applications devel- oped for zoos, aquariums, and museums; (2.6c) Mockups of the developed applications showing the interfaces of the developed ap- plications	22
0.7	A A C Child for minister combaning Mant's alloctions	- ეკ - ეკ
2.7 2.8	Some of the solutions adopted by the Uffizi's Museum are: (4.40a)	34 25
2.9	Illustrations of a distractor (on the left) and a facilitator (on the right) are provided. The former is represented by a conspicuous, shiny red sphere that is incongruous with the actual environment and, by virtue of its prominence, may divert the user's attention away from traversing the hallway. In contrast, the latter constitutes a Highlight area strategically designed to capture the user's focus and direct it towards the pertinent painting. [99]	35
4.1	Screenshoot of a generic Unity Editor, the following windows are identified: 1) Hierarchy; 2) Scene View; 3) Inspector; 4) Project	
	Browser	43
4.2	Script lifecycle flowchart part no. 1[106]	45
4.3	Script lifecycle flowchart part no. 2 [106].	46
$\begin{array}{c} 4.4 \\ 4.5 \end{array}$	BIM model made in Revit version 2020 by Dapino [108] Pipline to import the BIM model designed in Revit into Unity. 1) Output file format from Revit: IFC: 2) Output file format from	47
	COLLADA2IFC: XML, DAE, gLTF.	48
4.6	Screenshot of Unity showing in the hierarchy the HBim GameObject and its children labeled by their CUIDs	40
4.7	Screenshot of Unity showing in the hierarchy the HBim GameObject and its children labeled by their correct name. This is made possible	10
	through the C.1 script.	49
4.8	Unity screenshot showing in the inspector the IfcBuildinElement	
	class associated with a child of the HBim GameObject	50
4.9	Stages of the design thinking approach	51
4.10	This scoping research highlights the significant differences in sen- sory perception between neurotypical and autistic groups as well as the lack of thorough recommendations for indoor environmental design targeted towards those with ASD. The findings show that more research is required, as well as the development of specialised indoor environmental standards, in order to increase the autonomy.	
	happiness, and health of those with ASD [117]	52

4.11 The opening segment of the Activity Diagram portrays two key aspects: first, the actions taken prior to the museum visit (such as researching the museum, organizing the trip, reaching the museum, and acquiring tickets), and second, the assortment of services, tools, and information from both the Ara Pacis Museum and external providers that visitors utilize to accomplish these tasks. [118]

53

54

- 4.12 The subsequent section of the Activity Diagram illustrates two critical components. In the upper portion, it delineates the central activities during the museum tour, encompassing curiosity satisfaction, knowledge acquisition, temporal reflection, monument observation, and positive emotional experiences. In the lower section, it outlines the characteristics of the "Ara as it was" tour and the ecosystem of museum artifacts that visitors utilize to engage in these activities. [118]
- 4.13 The subsequent part of the Activity Diagram illustrates additional key elements. In the upper section, it outlines core activities during the "Ara as it was" tour, including sharing the experience with others, utilizing headsets, and seeking comfort. It also encompasses two activities in the post-visit phase: reliving a similar experience and recommending it to others. In the lower section, it delineates the range of services, tools, and information available from the Ara Pacis Museum and external providers, which visitors leverage to engage 544.14 Video introductory frame. 574.15 1st mission: Why go to Palazzo Carignano? 574.16 2nd mission: When to go to Palazzo Carignano? 57574.18 (4.18a) Video introductory frame; (4.18b) Timeline of the history of Palazzo Carignano. 584.19 (4.19a) Video introductov frame; (4.19b) Example of a possible route to the museum. 584.20 (4.20a) Video introductory frame; (4.20b) Example of a photograph of the building. 594.21 (4.21a) Video introductory frame; (4.21b) The character shows what the entrance is. 594.22 (4.22a) Video introductory frame; (4.22c) Show what is required to receive the ticket. 60 4.23 (4.23a) Video introductory frame; (4.23b) Shows how to access the 60 4.24 (4.24a) Video introductory frame; (4.24b) It shows an adept indicat-61

4.25	$(4.25a) Completed puzzle \ldots \ldots$	61
4.26	Mobile app logo. The museum logo is used for the application logo	
	and in addition the diagonally placed initial is also used	62
4.27	The use case diagram shows the actors involved with the system. On	
	the left (human actors) the generic user using the application; on the	
	right (non-human actors) are Google Drive and Google Translator.	
	Also shown are the use cases that characterize the application divided	
	according to the types of data they use	64
4.28	Structure of Google Drive provided to users.	65
4.29	Structure of settings folder.	66
4.30	Structure of management folder. This folder contains files in text	
	format of formURL, webURL (related to website), address (Google	
	Drive link), email and mobile number useful for reservations. While	
	the Schedules and Prices files are in JSON format.	66
4.31	Structure of paths folder. The Palazzo Carignano folder is similar	
	to room i	67
4.32	Links between scenes in Unity handled via the C.2 script. (Green)	
	Scene 2 and Scene 2a represent the same functionality but provided	
	in 2 different ways, one in text format, the other through the use of	
	AAC. (Orange) Scene 3 and Scene 3a related to the paths section	68
4.33	Inspector that shows all the components of the DownloadServer	
	object	69
4.34	App Mockup - Loading Interface	70
4.35	App Mockup - Home Interface	70
4.36	App Mockup - Home Interface. Shows the animation created to	
	indicate how to rotate and enlarge the model	71
4.37	App Mockup - Home Interface. Shows what happens when the user	
	clicks on the arrow to access the menu	71
4.38	App Mockup - Language pop-up	72
4.39	App Mockup - Language pop-up. When the user selects the Italian	
	language all the corresponding videos are downloaded. Similarly, it	
	occurs when the user selects another language	72
4.40	(4.40a) ARASAAC closing symbol; (4.40b) ARASAAC opening symbol.	73
4.41	App Mockup - TimePanel Interface	73
4.42	App Mockup - Ticket Interface.	74
4.43	App Mockup - Position Interface.	74
4.44	App Mockup - Palazzo Carignano Interface.	75
4.45	Video preview, which shows all the components that a user can use	1 000 10-1
	during video playback.	75
4.46	Summary of the guidebook to be used to visit the museum with	
	accompanying videos	76

4.47	App Mock up - Introduction Interface
4.48	App Mock up - AAC Introduction Interface
4.49	App Mockup - Path Interface. The user can select the route they
	want to visit. \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots $.$
4.50	Example of a room class within Unity's inspector
4.51	App Mockup - Path Interface. Example of an interactive map 79
4.52	Example of a ManagePath within Unity's inspector
4.53	360° image showing the hallway of Palazzo Carignano 81
4.54	(4.54a) Turn off the mobile phone ringer; $(4.54b)$ Do not eat; $(4.54c)$
	Do not run; (4.54d) Do not use the flash; (4.54e) Do not touch the
	artworks and wall; (4.54f) Do not use shout
4.55	App Mockup - Rules Interface
4.56	App Mockup - Google Form Interface
4.57	Minimum Android API setting
4.58	Unity's AR Foundation supported features [127]
4.59	Screenshot of the reference image library object within the Unity
	inspector
4.60	(4.60a) Tracked image; (4.60b) Screenshot of the AR app when the
	image on the left is drawn
4.61	VR app logo. The museum logo is used for logo and in addition the
	diagonally placed initial is also used
4.62	SteamVR 2.0 base station manufacturers' recommended configura-
1 00	$tion [133]. \dots \dots$
4.63	HTC Vive Pro 2 HMD [134]. \dots 91
4.64	HTC Vive Pro 2 controllers and their configuration[135] 92
4.65	Vive Tracker device $[134]$
4.66	Screenshot of the hierarchy and inspector of Unity where the prefab-
4.07	ricated SteamVR Player is shown
4.07	Screensnot of the environment object within the Unity inspector.
	in gLTE format and Turin with all its shildren with their labels
1 68	Virtual environment perspective number 1
4.00	Virtual environment perspective number 2
4.09	Model of the avetar used as a user within the virtual reality experience 05
4.70	Model of the avatar used as a user within the virtual reality experience. 90
4.71	Scroonshot of the CameObject within the Unity inspector that
4.12	represents avatar Gio
A.1	Guide for Museum Staff, page 1
A.2	Guide for Museum Staff, page 2
A.3	Guide for Museum Staff, page 3

A.4	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge 4	4														• •	•	110
A.5	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge l	5.															•	111
A.6	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge (6																111
A.7	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge '	7																111
A.8	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge å	8															•	112
A.9	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge 9	9															•	112
A.10	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge i	10.															•	112
A.11	Guide fo	r Museu	ım Sta	aff,	pag	ge i	11.															•	113
D 1	$\alpha \cdot 1 c$			1																			114
B.I	Guide fo	r users,	page	1	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	•••	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	114
B.2	Guide fo	r users,	page	2	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	• •	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	115
B.3	Guide fo	r users,	page	3	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	• •	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	115
B.4	Guide fo	r users,	page	4 ~	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	• •	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	115
B.5	Guide fo	r users,	page	5	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	• •	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	116
B.6	Guide fo	r users,	page	6 -	• •	·	•	• •	·	•	• •	·	·	•••	·	• •	•	·	·	•	• •	•	116
B.7	Guide to	r users,	page	7	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	·	• •	•		•	•	•	•	• •	•	116
B.8	Guide to	r users,	page	8	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	·	• •	•		•	•	•	•	• •	•	117
B.9	Guide to	r users,	page	9	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	·	• •	•		•	•	•	•	• •	•	117
B.10	Guide fo	r users,	page	10.	• •	·	•	• •	•	•	• •	·	·	• •	•	• •	•	·	•	•		•	117
B.II	Guide to	r users,	page	11.	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	·	• •	•		•	•	•	•		•	118
B.12	Guide to	r users,	page	12.	• •	·	•		•	•		·	•	•••	•		•	·	•	·		•	118
B.13	Guide to	r users,	page	13.	• •	·	•	• •	•	•	• •	·	•	•••	·		•	·	·	•		•	118
B.14	Guide to	r users,	page	14.	• •	·	•	• •	•	•	• •	·	•	•••	·		•	·	·	•		•	119
B.15	Guide fo	r users,	page	15.	• •	•	•		•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•		•	•	•	•		•	119
B.16	Guide fo	r users,	page	16.	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	• •	•	•	·	•		•	119
B.17	Guide fo	r users,	page	17.	• •	•	•		•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•		•	•	•	•		•	120
B.18	Guide to	r users,	page	18.	• •	·	•	• •	•	•	• •	·	•	•••	·		•	·	·	•		•	120
B.19	Guide fo	r users,	page	19.	• •	•	•		•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•		•	•	•	•		•	120
B.20	Guide fo	r users,	page	19.	• •	•	•		•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•		•	•	•	•		•	121
B.21	Guide to	r users,	page	20.	• •	·	•	• •	•	•	• •	·	•	•••	·		•	·	·	•		•	121
B.22	Guide fo	r users,	page	21.		•	•		•	•		·	•	• •	•		•	·	•	•		•	121
B.23	Guide fo	r users,	page	22.		•	•		•	•		·	•	• •	•		•	·	•	•		•	122
B.24	Guide fo	r users,	page	23.		•	•		•	•		·	•	• •	•		•	·	•	•		•	122
B.25	Guide fo	r users,	page	24.		•	•			•		•			•		•	•	•	•		•	122
B.26	Guide fo	r users,	page	25.	• •	•	•		•	•		•	•		•		•	•	•	•		•	123
B.27	Guide fo	r users,	page	26.	• •	•	•		•	•		•	•		•		•	•	•	•		•	123
B.28	Guide fo	r users,	page	27.											•					•			123

Acronyms

AAC

Augmented and Alternative Communication

ADD

Attention Deficit Disorder

ADHD

Attention-Deficit / Hyperactivity Disorder

AEC

Architecture, Engineering, and Construction

\mathbf{AI}

Artificial Intelligence

API

Application Programming Interface

\mathbf{AR}

Augmented Reality

ASD

Autism Spectrum Disorders

BIM

Building Information Modeling

CAD

Computer Aided Design

XVII

CAE

Computer Aided Environment

COLLADA

COLLAborative Design Activity

DAE

Digital Asset Exchange

\mathbf{DSM}

Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders

gLTF

graphics Library Transmission Format

GUID

Globally Unique Identifier

HBIM

Heritage Building Information Modeling

HMD

Head-Mounted Display

HTTP

Hypertext Transfer Protocol

IBM

International Business Machines Corporation

ICD

International Classification of Disease

ICOM

International Council of Museums

ID

Identifier

XVIII

IDE

Integrated Development Environment

IEQ

Indoor Environmental Quality

IFC

Industry Foundation Classes

\mathbf{IMU}

Inertial Measurement Unit

\mathbf{IT}

Information Technology

JSON

JavaScript Object Notation

MBIM

Museum Building Information Modeling

NDD

Neurodevelopmental Disorders

OCD

Obsessive Compulsive Disorder

ODD

Oppositional Defiance Disorder

SDGs

Sustainable Development Goals

\mathbf{UML}

Unified Modeling Language

UI

User Interface

$\mathbf{V0}$

Historical Video

V1

Video Step 1

V2

Video Step2

V3

Video Step 3

V4

Video Step 4

V5

Video Step 5

V6

Video Step 6

V7

Video Step 7

$\mathbf{V8}$

Video Step 8

\mathbf{VR}

Virtual Reality

WHO

World Health Organization

WISS

Wearable Immersive Social Story

\mathbf{XML}

eXtensible Markup Language

\mathbf{XR}

Extended Realit

Chapter 1

Introduction to Museums, Neurodivergence, and Digital Inclusion Tools

1.1 When Museums Became Aware of Inclusion and Diversity

Since the 1960s, museums have been at the center of a broad spectrum of feminist, racist, classist, and neurotypical critiques that regarded museums as spaces of privilege for only few – namely white, high-class, heterosexual, and well-educated subjects [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6]. Indeed, the great hordes of contestants that originated in this very era (1968 onwards) noticed that issues of representation, accessibility, and inclusion were violated within the very walls of this Institution – that was instead founded to ennoble and dignify the peoples of the newly born democracies worldwide [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6]. The waves of contestation were so reverberant that this moment started what is internationally known as the "Museum critique" and therefore the corpus of studies that critically dissects, comments, and eventually perfects what international museum purchase, curate, exhibit, and preserve within the national identity of a given country, repertoire, and memory.

Among the first and most iconic acts of contestation that exacerbated the zeitgeist of this moment was the performance by Christo and Jeanne-Claude *Wrapped Kunsthalle* (1968) in Bern, Switzerland, which provided the complete isolation of the Swiss museum via a great operation of wrapping that surrounded the whole building [7]. By insulating the institution, the international audience could physically visualize the status of isolation – and therefore privilege – museums were benefiting from, and which was the very subject of international critiques.

Through this operation, the wider public could see the net division between the *idealization* shown inside the museum and the *realism* of the outside – the one that indeed characterized their lives. It was however also the museum that, from the inside, could realize its status of isolation, self-ness, and privilege, eventually shaking a deep sense of awareness and a calling to renovate its spirit and mission [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7].



Figure 1.1: Christo and Jeanne-Claude, Wrapped Kunsthalle, 1968, Bern, Switzerland [8].

The experience in Bern indeed triggered a global awareness in the realms of museum studies, curation, and art history to the extent that museum directors, art critics, as well as intellectuals, and thinkers worldwide gathered and produced a generous corpus of studies that condensed in annual bulletins, reviews, and reports [9]. The epitome of this generalized movement culminated with the institution of the International Council of Museums (ICOM) in 1946 that not only responded to the global need of harmonizing museum practices, but also the politics, rights, violations, and injustices that its collections, masterpieces, and curatorial approaches perpetuated [10, 11]. The foundation year is indeed iconic; 1946 was indeed the turning point of World War II, its very end, and epilogue. Upon its conclusion, 650.000+ artworks from the European (and not only) scenario were either stolen, looted, destroyed, or lost by the Nazis, impacting on national identities, personal fortunes, and global shame [12]. It was indeed this very spirit that drove countries worldwide to meet and systematize the importance of art and culture, as well as its significance, exhibition and understanding - it was in this historical humus, therefore, that the ICOM came into being.



Figure 1.2: First Global Presentation of the ICOM, 1946, Paris [10].

When the global equilibrium was somehow re-established throughout the 1940s and 1950s, the mushroomed new system of museums had to then tackle with the aforementioned waves of the 1960s and 1970s [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7]. It was in this scenario that the ICOM played its first and foundational tasks. It indeed summited in sensitive capitals such as Moscow (1977) and Buenos Aires (1986), spreading a common idea of peace, attention, and awareness that gradually made of it a para-diplomatic and geopolitical institution that sought to provide a global re-management of the cultural heritage through museums [13, 14].



Figure 1.3: ICOM Summit in Moscow-Leningrad, Russia, 1977 [10].



Figure 1.4: ICOM Summit in Buenos Aires, Argentina, 1986 [10].

However, while in the 1950s its priorities gravitated around the aftermath of World War II, the 1960s, as introduced, demanded new policies of inclusion, representation, diversity, and equal rights – thus adding a layer of socio-cultural sensitivity to its functioning and orientation. Since then, the ICOM has indeed activated a meaningful and impactful series of actions, provisions, and global callings that holistically aimed at improving global museum experiences for everyone. Its latest, revised, and updated self-definition indeed reads:



The ICOM shall therefore be intended as the very reference to understand museums – their identity, goals, orientations, and evolutions.

1.2 How Biomedical Engineering Meets Museums

While the ICOM has been gaining a global central position in the coordination of museums, also science, and specifically biomedical engineering, has recently joined the mission and provided multifaceted solutions and practices. On a broader level, hard sciences – such as neurocognitive studies, mobility disciplines, as well as psychiatry, physics, and psychology – gathered to approach, study, and perfect the reception of museum experiences from the perspective of non-neurotypical subjects. Among the most successful examples there is "The Neurodiverse Museum"[16], a straightforward project that holds a meaningful objective and name. Its description reads verbatim:

From "The Neurodiverse Museum" Official Website

"The Neurodiverse Museum has been set up to change the way museums and the cultural sector as a whole, approaches neurodiversity. In case you're not familiar, neurodivergence includes autism, ADHD, ADD, dyslexia, OCD, ODD, dyspraxia, dyscalculia, dysgraphia and others.

We aim to shift the dialogue and provision from deficit, person first, exclusionary models, to presumed competence, identify first, inclusionary models with ActuallyAustitic and neurodivergent voice at its heart.

We are currently in the process of developing the next stage of the project and accessing funding to support a wide scale programme to support neurodivergent people to access museums, see themselves reflected through museum display and collecting, and support pathways to the workforce which are currently not available - with lived experience always at the centre." [16]

The name of this museum holds the very essence of this research and therefore the hybridization between biomedical knowledge and museum needs. This museum was however founded only in 2022 and therefore a year ago, and in the United Kingdom only [16]. While research and applications in this field have been mushrooming, most museum environments perpetuate serious accessibility biases and issues that prevent a large part of the population from accessing them [17, 18]. This thesis therefore seeks to participate in this pioneering wave, by applying – on a dual technical and practical level - accessibility tools to make museum experiences accessible, open, and literally demo-cratic – the people, the demos, indeed re-gain

their power and right, the cratos. This pursuit of accessibility is not only supported by international organizations such as the ICOM, but also by the very context in which this thesis is being developed and finalized: Italy. As the world's first cultural heritage country (by the number of UNESCO sites), Italy holds indeed a primary role and responsibility in making its legacy accessible to all, especially to the growingly diagnosed population of neurodivergent subjects, who, in 2022, is estimated to reach 15 to 20% of the population and therefore more than 9-12 million individuals [19, 20]. Moreover, Italy's prestige in the cultural sphere does create an aura of further responsibility on a global scale; the world of biomedical engineering along with hard sciences and humanities shall therefore collaborate to celebrate such a responsibility and deliver world's preeminent technologies and findings. This is indeed the very pursuit of this research and work, which will contextualize up-to-date research along with a practice-based project for one of Turin's most prestigious museums, Palazzo Carignano. For it, I conceptualized, developed, and finalized a fully-functional app, which incorporates all the functions and provisions a neurodivergence sensitive product shall hold. Its design, functioning, experience, and management will be discussed and illustrated in two final appendixes, which practically show the whole exacerbation of the theories cited in the first part of this thesis – thus providing a rounded theoretical and practical experience to the whole field of research.

1.3 Clarifying the Semiotics of this Study: Definitions, Subjects, and Players

This section is dedicated to clarifying the terms, definitions, and implications that will be employed throughout the thesis according the most up-to-date, deontological, and revised version from some of the world's prestigeous sources. ***

1.3.1 Museum and Visitors

As is evident from the aforementioned definition, the museum as a service must prioritize its visitors. Therefore, it is of paramount importance to conduct an analysis on this aspect, taking into consideration the recent definition provided by ICOM. Museum visitors can be anyone such as children, families, academics, residents, visitors and individuals from all backgrounds. Falk [21], a museum scholar, established five identity-related visitor motivation¹ categories that represent the needs and interests people exhibit during a specific visit. These categories are as follows:

- 1. Experience seekers go to the museum because they see it as an important place to visit, and their satisfaction comes from the mere act of having been there.
- 2. **Explorers** have a general interest in the museum's exhibits and are driven by curiosity.
- 3. Facilitators don't go to the museum to fulfill their own motivation but to satisfy the require of their group.

¹Falk [22] defines two type of identities:

^{1. &}quot;I" refers to enduring and deep-seated aspects of a person's self-identity that are fundamental to their sense of self and persist over time. This identity is often rooted in factors such as gender, nationality, political views, religion, ethnicity and other fundamental aspects of one's personal identity.

^{2. &}quot;i" is transient and situational aspects of a person's identity that are context-dependent and responsive to specific moments and circumstances. This identity emerges and adapts in response to the immediate social, cultural, and environmental factors at play. Identityrelated visitor motivation falls under this category of identity.

- 4. **Professional/hobbyists** feel a near tie between the museum content and their professional or specialist interests.
- 5. **Rechargers** visit the museum primarily to have a reflective, spiritual, or restorative experience, using it as a sanctuary from the busy everyday life.

The motivations to go to the museum for each person may be more than one at a given time and they may evolve over time [23]. Therefore, according to the proposed classification, a visitor should not be seen as belonging to a single category and the museum should try to meet the needs of all. Visiting a museum can be regarded as a complex process as it combines different components that are known to interact with health [24].



Figure 1.5: A logic model linking the arts with health [25].

The World Health Organization's (WHO) [26] definition of health goes beyond the mere absence of disease or infirmity, instead emphasizing the concept of complete physical, mental, and social well-being. The definition highlights the importance of individual and social well-being, including factors such as social integration, contribution to society, acceptance and belief in society's potential [24]. In the last few years, the museum-health link is becoming a topic of interest both in research and in national and international policies. In order to better understand this connection, two questions will be addressed.

1st question

What is the impact of museums on visitor's health?

There is growing evidence that visiting museums can have a positive impact on the health and well-being of visitors [27, 28, 29]. According to research [30, 31], visit a museum can lower stress levels, make people feel happier, and give people chances to interact with others. However, it is important to note that not all museums are created equal in terms of their impact on health and well-being. Factors such as the type of museum, the quality of exhibits, and the visitor experience can all influence the benefits that visitors derive from their visit.

2nd question

Should the visitor's health be taken into account by the museum?

"NO ONE LEFT BEHIND". The recognition of cultural access as a significant factor in shaping subjective well-being may facilitate the development of innovative and ambitious public health initiatives [32].

1.3.2 Sustainable Development Goals (2030 Agenda)

In September 2015, the 193 Members of the United Nations approved the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development entitled *Transforming Our World* [33]. The 2030 Agenda through its 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) aims to address major social, environmental and economic challenges by 2030. The 17 SDGs and their 169 associated targets serve as a guide for all nations and sectors as they join forces to build a future that upholds human rights and ensures that everyone can live in dignity and security within a healthy, safe environment. The 2030 Agenda may greatly benefit from museums, and certain SDGs cannot be accomplished without them. Mcghie [34], through a framework of seven key activities indicates how museums could seek to align with the 2030 Agenda. Below are the activities:

- 1. Protect and safeguard the world's cultural and natural heritage, both within museums and more broadly.
- 2. Support and provide learning opportunities in support of the SDGs.
- 3. Enable cultural participation for all.
- 4. Support sustainable tourism.
- 5. Enable research in support of the SDGs.
- 6. Direct internal leadership, management and operations in support of the SDGs.
- 7. Direct external leadership, collaboration and partnerships towards the SDGs.

If this framework were fully complied with there would be an alignment to about one-third of all SDGs, but for the purpose of the thesis there will be a greater focus on activities 3, 6 and implicitly 1.



Figure 1.6: The museum must takes care of the visitor.

1.3.3 Autism Spectrum Disorders

Definition Autism

"Autism spectrum disorder (ASD) is characterised by persistent deficits in the ability to initiate and to sustain reciprocal social interaction and social communication, and by a range of restricted, repetitive, and inflexible patterns of behaviour, interests or activities that are clearly atypical or excessive for the individual's age and sociocultural context. The onset of the disorder occurs during the developmental period, typically in early childhood, but symptoms may not become fully manifest until later, when social demands exceed limited capacities. Deficits are sufficiently severe to cause impairment in personal, family, social, educational, occupational or other important areas of functioning and are usually a pervasive feature of the individual's functioning observable in all settings, although they may vary according to social, educational, or other context. Individuals along the spectrum exhibit a full range of intellectual functioning and language abilities." [35]



Figure 1.7: ARASAAC pictogram: autism

The aforementioned definition is taken from the International Classification of Diseases (ICD-11) which aligns with Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM-5-TR). This is to say that ASD includes Childhood Disintegrative Disorder, Asperger's Syndrome and certain other generalised developmental disorders [36].



Figure 1.8: Separate diagnosis in DSM-IV that are now under the umbrella of autism spectrum disorder in DSM-V [37].

ASD is a biologically based neurodevelopmental disorder characterized by persistent deficits in social communication and social interaction and restricted, repetitive patterns of behavior, interests, and activities [36]. The sphere of social communication and interaction is assessed through:

- Social-emotional reciprocity;
- Nonverbal communicative behaviors;
- Developing, maintaining, and understanding relationships.

While the restricted repetitive patterns of behavior is evaluate with the following:

- Stereotyped or repetitive movements, use of speech, or objects;
- Insistence on sameness, unwavering adherence to routines, or ritualized patterns of verbal or nonverbal behavior;
- Highly restricted, fixated interests that are abnormal in strength or focus;
- Increased or decreased response to sensory input or unusual interest in sensory aspects of the environment [36].

After assessing these aspects, a patient with ASD may fall into one of the following severity levels:

1. Requiring support,
2. Requiring substantial support

3. Requiring very substantial support

Individuals diagnosed with autism spectrum disorder (ASD) often experience enjoyment and engagement when engaging with computers. This is because computer interactions take place within a secure and dependable environment [38]. As suggested by ICD good practice for rehabilitation interventions, increasing social skills in people with ASD requires a customised approach that takes into account the individual's unique strengths, challenges and interests. Here are some strategies that may be helpful:

- Social skills training involves teaching individuals with ASD appropriate social skills through structured instruction, modeling, and practice in real-life situations. This may include teaching skills such as making eye contact, taking turns in conversations, and interpreting social cues [39].
- **Peer-mediated interventions** involve training typically developing peers to interact with individuals with ASD in inclusive environments. This can help individuals with ASD develop social skills by providing them with opportunities to interact with peers in a supportive and naturalistic setting [40].
- Social narratives are stories that describe social situations and appropriate behaviors. They can help individuals with ASD understand social situations, learn appropriate responses, and anticipate potential challenges [41].
- Video modeling involves watching videos of individuals engaging in appropriate social behaviors, which can help individuals with ASD learn and practice social skills [42]. According to Alpaydin [43], Talal [44], and Plavnick et al. [45], video modeling is especially useful for teaching novel social behavior. Video modeling can be applied officially through a planned curriculum or ad hoc by a provider to a particular student. Video modeling is an easy intervention option for schools because it needs little adult guidance or support [46]. Peer mediation and modeling are subtly incorporated into video modeling. Children watch videos of expected and/or desirable behavioral settings, then practice the behavior on their own. This is how social skills training is given in a way that is comfortable and appealing to kids.
- Visual supports, such as picture schedules, social scripts, and visual prompts, can help individuals with ASD understand social expectations and navigate social situations [47].

It's important to note that social skill development is a gradual process, and progress may vary from person to person [48]. A collaborative approach involving family members, educators, and therapists can help support individuals with ASD in developing their social skills.



Figure 1.9: This PrimeView provides a concise overview of the management strategies for autism spectrum disorder, a neurodevelopmental condition that commonly presents during childhood [49].

1.3.4 Brief History and Deontological Acknowledgment of the Term "Neurodiverse"

In the previous chapters, there was the harmonized application of the term "neurodivergent" to indicate the final users and targeted subjects of this project. The term, which is commonly employed in the scientific historiography, originates in a non-medical context and, specifically, in the field of sociology. It was indeed Australian sociologist Judy Singer who, back in the 1960s, coined the term to describe the status of autistic person she primarily suffered from, and which was meant to differentiate the spectrum and forms of autism people tended to confuse and overlap interchangeably [50, 51]. Her idea originated within such a naïve, personal context that her first proposal of the term "neurodivergent" was introduced in her thesis titled Neurodiversity: the Birth of an Idea. The term "birth" underlines the level of discretion she felt to present her idea with, stating that her common association as an autistic subject confused rather than clarified her condition and status. "For me, she explained, "the key significance of the "Autistic Spectrum" lies in its call for and anticipation of a politics of Neurological Diversity, or "Neurodiversity". The neurologically different represent a new addition to the familiar political categories of class/gender/race and it will augment the insights of the social model of disability" [52]. In a nutshell, Singer was proposing a new semiotics of autism, whose socio-cultural associations had taken such derogatory nuances and meanings that she felt she needed to advocate for a new title, name, and dignity. It was however in 1998 that the term spread internationally thanks to American journalist Harvey Blume, who employed the term in a September 1998 issue of the Atlantic, and whose use of the definition eventually turned to be only pioneering [53]. Indeed, the community of neurodivergent individuals did not identify with the interpretation provided by the author – objectified to serve as a metaphor of the internet and its functioning - who however exposed the concept to the wider public, which eventually metabolized it as a new acceptation to address and comprehend statutes falling under the autism spectrum. Celebrating the political, sociological, and medical history behind this term, this thesis will therefore employ it throughout the whole text, complying with international bibliography, new medical descriptory trends, and inclusivity codes. I am however aware that there are several bibliographical schools that question the medical integrity and accuracy of this definition [54, 55], which is however still recurrent in the international bibliography on the topic.

1.3.5 Accessibility and Inclusion within Museum Practices

Definition

Accessibility [56]: "extent to which products, systems, services, environments and facilities can be used by people from a population with the widest range of user needs, characteristics and capabilities to achieve identified goals in identified contexts of use."

Inclusion [57]: "the practice or policy of providing equal access to opportunities and resources for people who might otherwise be excluded or marginalized, such as those having physical or intellectual disabilities or belonging to other minority groups."

Museums globally prioritize enhancing accessibility and inclusivity for visitors with physical or mental health conditions [58, 59]. This involves creating a welcoming and accommodating environment that caters to all visitors, irrespective of their fragility. Strategies employed by museums to accommodate fragile visitors include:

- **Physical accessibility**: ensuring physical accessibility in museums is crucial for individuals with mobility challenges or physical disabilities. It necessitates measures like ramps, elevators, accessible restrooms, and designated parking spaces, enabling disabled visitors to navigate the museum independently and comfortably [60].
- Sensory-friendly experiences: visitors with sensory processing disorders or sensitivities may benefit from sensory-friendly experiences, such as dimmed lighting, lowered sound levels, or special exhibitions that are specifically designed [61].
- Inclusive programming: many museums are developing programming that is specifically tailored to visitors with physical or mental health challenges. This may include specialized tours, workshops, or interactive exhibits that are designed to be more accessible [61].
- **Training staff**: museum staff may receive training on how to interact with and accommodate visitors who may have different needs due to their fragility. This may include training on how to use specialized equipment or how to communicate effectively with visitors who may have hearing or vision impairments [60].

• **Digital access**: providing digital access to museum collections and exhibits can be particularly beneficial for visitors who may not be able to visit the physical space due to their fragility. This may include virtual tours, online collections, or interactive exhibits that can be accessed from anywhere [62, 63].

By focusing on making their spaces and programming more accessible and inclusive, museums can create a welcoming environment for visitors who may be considered fragile, and ensure that they can fully enjoy and benefit from the museum experience.

1.3.6 Available Digitals Tools for Museum Expiriences

Technology has a significant impact on the way museums showcase and preserve art. However, the use of technology within traditional museums has both positive and negative impacts in terms of management, security and accessibility [64]. Some of the ways in which technology supports museums and their collections include:

- **Digital Collections.** Technology has made it possible for museums to digitize their collections, opening them up to a wider audience via online platforms. This broadens the audience for museum collections, as well as improving their searchability, discoverability, and user interaction with artworks [65].
- Virtual Tours: with the rise of virtual reality (VR) and augmented reality (AR) technology, museums can offer virtual tours that provide an immersive experience of their exhibitions and collections. This is especially useful for those who are unable to visit the museum in person [66].
- Conservation and Preservation. Thanks to technology, museums can now better protect and safeguard their holdings. For instance, museums use high-resolution imaging technology to examine and document artworks, as well as specialised software to keep an eye on environmental conditions and safeguard objects from harm [67].
- Interactive Exhibitions: technology has enabled museums to create interactive exhibitions that allow visitors to engage with the art in new and exciting ways. For example, museums can use touchscreens, audio guides, and other interactive tools to provide additional information and context about the works on display [68].

Overall, technology has had a transformative impact on the museum industry and has helped to make art more accessible, engaging, and preservation-friendly.

1.3.7 Virtual and Augmented Reality



Figure 1.10: Differences between AR, MR and VR [69].

Definitions

Virtual reality "a set of images and sounds, produced by a computer, that seem to represent a place or a situation that a person can take part in" [70]

Augmented reality "is a system that enhances the real world by superimposing computer-generated information on top of it." [71]

The term of extended reality (XR), is the broad umbrella term used to encapsulate all immersive experiences in fully or semi-virtual environments using technologies of AR, MR and VR [72]. The size of the global VR market reached \$19.44 billion in 2022 and is expected to surge from \$25.11 billion in 2023 to a staggering \$165.91 billion by the year 2030 [73]. This growth is driven by the immersive experiences it provides, allowing users to intimately explore virtual scenes from various time periods and locations. The technologies used range from a common mobile phone, 3D walls to headmounted displays (HMDs). This makes these technologies applicable to the most diverse contexts, e.g. for education, health, entertainment.



Global Virtual Reality Market Share, By Industry, 2022

www.fortunebusinessinsights.com

Figure 1.11: The 2022 subdivision of the global VR market shows one-third greater use in gaming and health.[74].

VR has undergone a remarkable journey since its inception and continues to advance at a rapid pace. With major players such as Facebook committing significant financial resources to its growth, the future of VR is not only promising but also teeming with opportunities [75].

Meta Quest 2	Standalone (Android- based)	$\begin{array}{c} \$299 (64GB), \$399 \\ (256GB) \end{array}$	Dual RGB low persistence OLED	3664 x 1920 pixels	Approximately 90°	Inside-out 6DoF	Oculus Touch Controllers	None	Integrated speakers and 3.5mm headphone jack	None	Extensive	Very easy	Very Portable	Comfortable
HTC Vive Pro 2	PC (Windows)	\$799 (Headset Only)	Dual RGB low persistence LCD	2448 x 2448 pixels	$\mathrm{Up} \mathrm{ to } 120^{\circ}$	Full Room-scale (6DoF)	HTC Vive Controllers	SteamVR Tracking 2.0	Integrated headphones	High-end gaming PC	Extensive	Complex	Not Portable	Comfortable
Google Cardboard	Android, iOS	\$10 - \$15	Smartphone Display	Varies (Depends on Phone)	Typically 90° - 120°	Limited (3DoF)	Limited (Depends on Phone)	None	Phone's speakers/head- phones	None	Limited	Very easy	Very Portable	Basic
Feature	Platform	Price (Approxi- mate)	Display	Resolution Per Eye	Field of View (FOV)	Tracking	Controllers	External Sensors	Audio	PC Requirements	Content Library	Setup Complexity	Portability	Comfort

 Table 1.1: Comparison of Google Cardboard, HTC Vive Pro 2, and Meta Quest 2

1.3.8 Building Information Modeling

Definitions BIM

Building Information Modeling: "As an activity, BIM thus consists of the set of processes applied to realize, manage, derive and communicate information between entities at different levels, using models created by all participants in the building process, at different times and also for unequal purposes, to ensure quality and efficiency through the entire lifecycle of the building. Instead, BIM as an object is an unambiguous digital representation ... consisting of digital objects corresponding to real-world components such as walls, doors and windows with associated relationships, attributes and properties." [76]

A significant portion of architecture, engineering, and construction (AEC) projects involve the use of BIM, which calls for a complete shift to digitalization in the manufacturing sector. BIM is a process that involves the creation and management of digital models of a building or infrastructure, and it can be used for design, construction, operation, and maintenance. Unlike the traditional method, Computer Aided Design (CAD), BIM has changed the way project is done [77].

Here are some key points about BIM:

Interoperability

Interoperability, which enables the seamless exchange of data and product information between various software platforms without the loss of essential information, is the cornerstone of BIM. This skill permits thorough and effective collaboration amongst various construction parties. Interoperability should be understood not only between software but also between the stakeholders involved in the process. Interoperability is of two types:

- 1. Horizontal. It concerns consists of the exchange of data between two architectural BIM software, e.g., CAD-to-CAD.;
- 2. Vetical. It concerns architectural and structural software environments, such as the CAD-to-CAE path [78].



Figure 1.12: Representative diagram of the difference in collaboration between traditional and BIM.

The exchange of data and information can be performed either between software produced by the same company or through the use of plug-ins, which allow the use of proprietary formats. Alternatively, it can be performed between software from different companies, requiring in this case the use of the Industry Foundation Classes (IFC) format as the standard exchange format. The IFC format, developed by buildingSMART, is an open, non-proprietary format designed to facilitate interoperability between different actors. This approach is known as **openBIM** and aims to make the entire process independent of single proprietary formats [79].



Figure 1.13: IFC file includes both, geometry and data [80].

Industry Foundation Classes

In Italy, the IFC format and conceptual data schema is normalized by the ISO 16739:2013 standard. The structure of the IFC format consists of multiple entities, which can be rooted and unrooted.

lfcRoot	
IfcObjectDefinition	
IfcPropertyDefinition	
IfcRelationship	

Figure 1.14: Entity inheritance of IfcRoot [81]

The main type of entities are *IfcRoot*, which is the category that encompasses all rooted entities. *IfcRoot* is composed of 3 three abstract categories [81].

- *IfcPropertyDefinition*: defines the concept of aggregating individual properties into a comprehensive set of characteristics that can be assigned to objects.
- *IfcRelationship*: defines the relationships between objects, and these can be 1-to-1 and 1-to-many relationships;
- *IfcObjectDefinition*: defines the presence and types of material objects;



Figure 1.15: Entity inheritance of *IfcObjectDefinition* [82].

All the elements required to provide a thorough description of a construction asset are included in the *IfcObjectDefinition* class. An object is an intangible or abstract thing that represents the description of a part of the building that is being digitally documented. All objects are represented by the *IfcObject* class, which responds to the 5Ws with the following classes: (who) *IfcActor*, (why) *IfcControl*, (what) *IfcGroup*, (where) *IfcProduct*, (when) *IfcProcess*, and (how) *IfcResource*.



Figure 1.16: Logical description of a single IFC project [83].

The *IfcProject* class is a fundamental entity within the BIM framework that serves as the highest-level container for organizing and managing information related to a construction or building project. Considering the design of a building, the *IfcProject* class representing that building is characterized by: 1) *IfcSite*, that includes a definition of the single geographic reference point; 2) *IfcBuilding*, that is used to build the spatial structure of a building; 3) *IfcBuildingStorey*, typically represents a (nearly) horizontal aggregation of spaces; 4) *IfcBuildingElement* that is an abstract entity and it represents foundation, floor, roof, wall and all object in that aggregation of space [84].

It is important to note that all classes can be linked together through the relationships that act as the glue to define everything within the IFC context.

1.3.9 Heritage Building Information Modeling

Heritage Building Information Modeling, also known as Historic Building Information Modeling (HBIM), is a type of BIM that is specifically tailored to the documentation, conservation, and management of historic buildings and heritage sites [85]. The geometric models derived from the surveys must constitute information representatives, including searchable data covering such aspects as the history and technical characteristics of individual elements, as well as the deteriorated condition of different parts of the work. This rich complex of information must be stored in a database that can be constantly improved over time. The application of BIM to existing construction can increasingly facilitate the disclosure of the built heritage by improving both the methods of data collection and the process of modeling and digital restitution of the object [86]. The growth of the HBIM paradigm in the built heritage sector demonstrates how this approach has enormous potential for improving the building over time in addition to documenting it [87]. However, HBIM currently faces several challenges such as:

- lack of a method that can peculiarly describe HBIM in object parameterization;
- absence of specialized tools for built heritage specialists in the modeling environment;
- a better understanding of information detail accuracy is required [88]

Despite the lack of standards that indicate how to uniquely link BIM to cultural heritage, a key tool for the cultural heritage area is the construction of an open database that defines specific artifacts and their associated qualities [89]. One method proposed for collecting historical information within a museum context is Museum-BIM (MBIM) [90]. MBIM is an external database that collects all historical and cultural data.

Chapter 2 State of the art

This chapter seeks to delve deeper into the intricate relationship between museums and autism, placing a particular emphasis on the transformative power of technology. The analysis focuses on exploring how the integration of mobile applications, VR, augmented reality AR, and BIM technologies can significantly enhance the museum experience for individuals on the autism spectrum. By harnessing the potential of these cutting-edge technologies, museums can create immersive and inclusive environments that effectively address the unique needs and individual preferences of those with ASD.

2.1 International Miscellaneous Case Study & Best Practices

Cornwall's Regimental Museum has undertaken unpretentious modifications to promote inclusivity and encourage visits from individuals with sensory processing disorders [91]. These adaptations encompass the provision of ear defenders to attenuate the intensity of bugle and drum sounds during exhibitions, deactivating hand-dryers in the restroom facilities, adjusting the lighting throughout the museum, and decluttering the reception desk, retaining only essential information. Furthermore, the organization has taken the initiative to offer a social narrative and a sensory map, aiming to enhance the comprehensibility of the site's layout and visiting procedures. see 2.1



Figure 2.1: The solutions adopted by Cornwall's Regimental Museum are: (2.1a) Social Narrative; (2.1b) Sensory Map; (2.1c) Sensory Bag

At **Rijksmuseum**, Saturday evenings are designated for the purpose of hosting Sensory-Friendly Evenings. These events are specially tailored to extend an invitation to individuals who may experience heightened sensitivity or excessive sensory stimulation due to various conditions such as autism, acquired brain injuries, burnout, or illness. During these occasions, deliberate measures are taken to create an environment conducive to accommodating these sensitivities. Within the museum's Atrium, the illumination is intentionally subdued, and the number of visitors is purposefully limited to foster a more comfortable atmosphere. To facilitate the reception process, proficient hosts with expertise in addressing the needs of the target audience are present. As part of the framework for these events, the museum offers complementary audio tours, enhancing the overall experience by providing informative and engaging insights into the exhibits. Moreover, a selection of the museum's exhibits is thoughtfully curated to ensure sensory-friendly adaptations. This involves considering factors that might mitigate sensory overload, allowing attendees to engage more fully with the artworks and historical artifacts on display [92].

The **Natural History Museum in London** The Natural History Museum in London hosts a recurring complimentary event tailored for children with neurodiverse conditions, known as Dawnosaurs [93]. Knowledgeable facilitators, who are well-versed in understanding and accommodating individuals on the autism spectrum, guide curated tours throughout the museum's galleries and oversee engaging activities. Furthermore, comprehensive social context and pertinent information are furnished to participants prior to their visit, thereby enhancing the overall safety and comfort of the museum experience.



Figure 2.2: Preview of the social history provided by the Natural History Museum of London in PDF format [93].

At the entrance to the Van Gogh Museum in the Netherlands, a tangible scale model of the museum itself is positioned. This model serves as a tactile reference for individuals who are blind or partially sighted, allowing them to physically navigate the architectural layout before entering, thereby facilitating their spatial orientation. Additionally, this scale model extends its utility to neurodiverse visitors by providing them with a preview of the museum's spatial arrangement. Mirjam Eikelenboom, an Educator at the Van Gogh Museum, elucidates that the tactile scale model possesses a distinct purpose catering to visitors with diverse visual impairments, yet its applicability transcends and benefits a broader spectrum of visitors. Complementing the museum's tactile representation, concerted endeavors are undertaken to address visitors with heightened sensory sensitivity across the entirety of their museum experience. To achieve this, a dedicated web page has been established to accommodate this audience, aiming to equip them with requisite information. The mentioned online resource serves to prepare and inform these visitors through the provision of several essential elements. Among them are a preliminary visualization of the museum's layout, an accessibility map, guidance on identifying spaces for potential respite, and the option to procure a "Hidden Disabilities Sunflower Lanyard," which can be utilized while within the museum premises. This multifaceted approach not only underscores the museum's commitment to ensuring inclusivity but also reflects their proactive stance in fostering an environment conducive to the needs of individuals with sensory sensitivities [94].



Figure 2.3: 3D model of the Van Gogh museum present at the entrance.

In recent years, the **Dallas Museum of Art**, **Montreal Museum of Fine Arts**, and **Palais des Beaux-Arts** de Lille have all developed programs specifically catered to individuals with autism and other neurodiverse conditions. These institutions, which are part of the FRAME network, have collaborated to create a Guide for Welcoming Museum Visitors with Autism Spectrum Disorder. This guide offers insights and tools for designing mediation activities and spaces that meet the unique needs of visitors with ASD. The recommendations and practical advice featured in the guide are based on the education projects carried out by the three FRAME members, who are part of a larger network comprising 32 museums across Canada, France, and the United States [95].

On **The Metropolitan Museum of Art**'s website, visitors can access a downloadable PDF version of the social narrative for the Discoveries program within the "Resources for Visitors on the Autism Spectrum" section. This narrative is presented in the first person to immerse readers in the program. A sensory map and an interactive map are also provided [96]. see 4.60



Figure 2.4: Some of the solutions adopted by the Met's Museum are: (4.40a) Social Narrative; (4.40b) Sensory Map.

State of the art

Guggenheim Museum through Guggenheim for All initiative aims to create a welcoming and accessible museum experience for visitors with autism and sensory sensitivities [97]. Some of the resources made available are shown in the figure below.



Figure 2.5: The solutions adopted by Guggenheim Museum are: (2.6a) Visual Schedule; (2.6b) Social Narrative; (2.6c) Sensory Map

Prior to delving into the analysis of the Italian context, it is pertinent to underscore the presence of a singular enterprise, **Infiniteach**. This company currently holds a prominent position within the market, as it specializes in the development of mobile and web app that find application in diverse domains, including but not limited to museums, travel arrangements, and oral healthcare tailored specifically for individuals situated within the autism spectrum. The company's mission is to develop inclusive solutions in the neurodiverse world [98].



Figure 2.6: (2.6a) Infiniteach company logo; (2.6b) Logo of applications developed for zoos, aquariums, and museums; (2.6c) Mockups of the developed applications showing the interfaces of the developed applications.

2.2 Experiences from Italy Scenario

The case of the **Mart** (Museum of Modern and Contemporary Art) in Rovereto, Italy, exemplifies a pioneering effort in the realm of museum accessibility and inclusion. This institution has made significant strides in ensuring that its exhibits and facilities are accessible to a diverse range of visitors, including those with disabilities. The Mart's commitment to accessibility encompasses both physical and intellectual aspects. In terms of physical accessibility, the museum has implemented various measures such as ramps, elevators, and tactile pathways to ensure that visitors with mobility challenges can navigate the space comfortably. Additionally, accessible restrooms and parking facilities are provided to cater to the needs of all visitors. Moreover, the Mart recognizes the importance of intellectual accessibility. To this end, it has developed innovative strategies (an AAC Guide for visitors exploring its collections) to engage visitors with neurodevelopmental disorders (NDD) and other cognitive disabilities.



Figure 2.7: AAC Guide for visitors exploring Mart' collections

Uffizi Galleries provides a social narrative to plan the visit and make the museum a welcoming space. It also offers Uffizi Activity Bag containing map, sheets for activities, headphone, cards for communication and other objects.



Figure 2.8: Some of the solutions adopted by the Uffizi's Museum are: (4.40a) Social Narrative; (4.40b) Sensory Bag.

Museums for All is a very interesting initiative that aims to transform traditional social stories into Wearable Immersive Social Stories (WISSs) using immersive technology. Joining this initiative are the **Archeological Museum** in Cremona, La **Venaria Reale** in Turin, the **World Cultures Museum** - D'Albertis Castle in Genoa, and the **National Gallery** in Rome. The design of the WISSs involves the identification and implementation of facilitators and distractors within the virtual scenes created with 360° images [99].



Figure 2.9: Illustrations of a distractor (on the left) and a facilitator (on the right) are provided. The former is represented by a conspicuous, shiny red sphere that is incongruous with the actual environment and, by virtue of its prominence, may divert the user's attention away from traversing the hallway. In contrast, the latter constitutes a Highlight area strategically designed to capture the user's focus and direct it towards the pertinent painting. [99]

2.3 Strategies Employed: Conclusion

After analysing some examples from the world panorama on accessibility for people with ASD in museums, the strategies adopted are summarized in the following table.

Method	Definition				
Social History (Social	Refers to a comprehensive review of an indi-				
Narrative)	vidual's developmental, social, and behavioral				
	background to better understand their unique				
	experiences and needs, often used in diagnosis				
	and intervention planning [100].				
Augmentative & Alter-	The AAC system offers those who have a				
native Communication	language development delay the chance to				
(AAC)	gain some level of independence, which will				
	enable them to participate in society more				
	fully [101].				
Sensory Map	Provides information about the layout of a				
	building and the level of sensory stimulation				
	that may be present in each space.				
Sensory Bag	Consists of scientifically validated items that				
	offer comfort and effective concentration for				
	children on the autism spectrum and others				
	who may occasionally experience overwhelm				
	or the effects of traumatic events $[102]$.				
Mobile App	Infiniteach develops applications in different				
	contexts, travel organization, museums, zoos				
	and aquariums giving the opportunity to be				
	able to communicate through PACS via its				
	app.				
Wearable Immersive So-	Fruition of traditional social stories within				
cial Stories (WISS)	virtual reality experiences.				

 Table 2.1: Compilation of strategies used to increase accessibility within museums around the world.

The lack of a methodology BIM, the reduced AR, VR and mobile app approach used with the goal of increased accessibility in the museum context are of relevant importance.

Chapter 3

Case study

3.1 Palazzo Carignano

HISTORY

Palazzo Carignano was built at the behest of Emanuele Filiberto of Savoy-Carignano, to a design by the theatine father Guarino Guarini, who began construction in 1679. It is one of the most evocative and imposing palaces of 17th-century Italy, with a sinuous façade and cladding in simple brick, preciously and originally worked.

The building had been erected in the area used as stables by Prince Tommaso, progenitor of the cadet branch Savoia-Carignano, and originally had a C-shaped plan opening onto the gardens; the current quadrangular structure is due to the addition of the 19th-century building constructed to house the Italian Parliament, and completed in 1871, after the capital moved to Rome. The central elliptical hall in the 17th-century part, formerly used for festivities, was transformed into the chamber of the First Subalpine Parliament in 1848.

Today the palace houses two different museums, as well as the headquarters of the Regional Museums Directorate. On the ground floor the Apartments of the Princes of Carignano reopened to the public in 2011 thanks to the support of the Compagnia di San Paolo. The Appartamento di Mezzogiorno (Midday Apartment) with its marvellous gilded boiseries is permanently open, while the Appartamento di Mezzanotte (Midnight Apartment) and its salons, frescoed by Stefano Maria Legnani known as Legnanino, the talented painter who worked in the Palazzo between the late 17th and early 18th century, are occasionally open to the public. The main floor houses the National Museum of the Italian Risorgimento.

3.1.1 Accessibility analysis

"In terms of accessibility and friendliness, the museum is open all year round, with sporadic nightime hours and a daily minimum of nine hours. With the exception of December 25, Monday through Friday, and January 1 and May 1, it is open on Saturdays and Sundays. The museum is active on social media and has a separate website that offers general details on hours and services. Any service interruptions or room closures are indicated by the most recent web information. Although there is an admission fee, the ticket counter also acts as a resource for information on the museum and its holdings. Tickets can be purchased at the office with a wait time of less than 30 minutes and discounts are available. Tickets can be reserved at the box office, over the phone, or via email, though they are not necessary unless entrance is free. There are free educational resources accessible at the information point, which is near the ticket counter. Both inside and outside the museum are safety signs, however the latter does not list the name or operating times. There is no reserved parking and no outside signage designating parks and gardens. The reception staff can point to a contact person or give basic instructions to the properties while wearing name tags. With more than 50% of interior rooms, spaces, and services being immediately accessible and 100% of outdoor rooms, spaces, and services being directly accessible, the general population with special needs is given physical accessibility. There is a dedicated personnel on hand, and there are tools and equipment for those who need it, such a stair lift."

This is what can be seen from the Service Charter available on the museum's website [103].

Chapter 4

Materials and Methods

This chapter aims to provide a comprehensive exploration of two primary aspects. Firstly, it will delve into the selection of the software and the specific BIM models that will serve as foundational elements for the development of digital services. Secondly, it will elucidate the methodologies, design principles, and implementation strategies that will be employed in crafting these services.

In terms of the chosen design methodology, this chapter will introduce and expound upon design thinking, a well-suited approach for tackling the intricate challenges at hand. Design thinking stands out as an apt choice due to its inherent emphasis on placing the end user at the forefront throughout each phase of service development, ensuring that the resulting digital services are meticulously tailored to meet user needs and expectations.

4.1 Unity

Unity (frequently referred to as Unity3D) serves as a game development platform and a comprehensive software suite that allows for the creation of interactive media, mainly video games. As stated by CEO David Helgason [104], Unity serves as a comprehensive toolkit for game development, encompassing graphics rendering, sound generation, physics simulation, user interactions, and network connectivity. It is renowned for its rapid prototyping capabilities and extensive publishing options. The objective was to democratize game development, making professional-grade tools accessible to amateur game creators. Unity is a cross-platform engine. While the engine itself presently allows creating games for more than 19 distinct platforms, including mobile, desktop, consoles, and virtual reality, the Unity editor is available on Windows, macOS, and the Linux operating system [105].

4.2 Unity Editor

Thanks to its user-friendly interface, well-conceived architectural design, and the seamless integration of pre-existing assets, the development cycle for 3D software can be significantly condensed in comparison to traditional development methodologies. This newfound efficiency has been further accentuated by the accessibility of consumer-grade virtual reality hardware, which, when coupled with Unity, has recently bestowed hobbyists, professionals, and scholars with the ability to expeditiously craft virtual reality applications. Unity's pervasive adoption and its accommodating interface have led to its full endorsement by several prominent virtual reality companies. Within the Unity editor, the most frequently employed windows include:

- Hierarchy contains the list of all *GameObjects* within the current scene.
- Scene View provides visualisation and management with the virtual environment constructed within the Editor. Within this view, users have the ability to select, manipulate, and modify *GameObjects*, which encompass various elements such as scenery, characters, cameras, lights, and additional components.
- **Inspector** shows all detailed associated at selected *GameObject* (i.e., Scripts, Colliders, Transform).
- **Project Browser** provides access to and management of the asset loaded in the project.

The version of Unity used for the implementation of the technology services is version 2020.3.42f1.

Unity	version
2020	.3.42f1

Table 4.1: Version of Unity used.



Figure 4.1: Screenshoot of a generic Unity Editor, the following windows are identified: 1) Hierarchy; 2) Scene View; 3) Inspector; 4) Project Browser

The so-called Components that make up GameObjects specify their physical and behavioral characteristics. Each GameObject comes equipped by default with the Transform Component, which depicts the object's position, size, and rotation within the virtual world. Everything that is ascribed to an object is a component, including scripts.

4.3 Unity Engine

Unity Engine is the development engine behind the Editor. Management of Physics, User Interface and Scripting will now be considered.

4.3.1 Physics

Within the context of Unity, the discourse concerning physics engenders an expansive purview. This purview encompasses constituent elements such as Colliders and Rigidbodies, as well as intricate functionalities exemplified by Raycasting. It is of paramount importance to underscore that the orchestration and administration of these resources are underpinned by the NVIDIA Physics engine. This engine, conceived and developed by NVIDIA, is distinguished by its remarkable versatility and formidable computational provess.

Colliders

Unity's colliders handle interaction and collisions between virtual objects. From a visual point of view, they can be seen as the outlines of a GameObject, which determines how the object interacts through its surface with other bodies. From a technical point of view, a collider is the base class, which includes many other classes such as box collider, sphere collider, mesh collider and capsule collider. The box collider, sphere collider and capsule collider all represent box-shaped forms. These classes show primitive colliders with simple geometric shapes. When using a MeshCollider, things are different. It allows you to create colliders that are based on the mesh applied to the object, which allows for more geometrically complex and accurate colliders, although this requires more in-depth computational calculations.

Rigidbodies

Rigidbodies are a key component of Unity's implementation of physics dynamics for GameObjects, enabling complex behaviors, a variety of joint configurations, and realistic collision responses. It is wise to choose either rigidbody-based physics interactions or direct modifications of the Transform Component when managing GameObjects, avoiding their concurrent use. The main difference between both methods is how they handle forces; rigidbodies can gracefully adapt external forces and torque, giving the GameObject a physics-driven quality. Transforms, in contrast, lack the capability for reliable physics simulations and are primarily intended for translation and rotation.

4.3.2 User Interface

For the creation and management of user interfaces (UI) in games and applications, Unity Engine offers a variety of components. Some of the UI components in Unity:

Canvas

All UI components should be placed inside the Canvas. All UI elements must be children of a canvas, which is a Game Object with a Canvas component on it.

Panel

UI containers called panels are used to gather and arrange other UI elements. They can be used to make pop-up menus, windows, or collections of related items.

Button

One of the most often used UI components is the button. They may be rapidly and easily configured to fit any application and complement any creative style. Publicly accessible on-click capability on buttons enables interactions to be carried out without actual programming. It is also simpler to call custom functions when using buttons.

Text

The Text component allows you to display text on the screen.

4.3.3 Scripting

The primary scripting language used by Unity is C#, which enables control over a variety of features of the *GameObject* and its parts.

Every in-game script should derive from MonoBehaviour, a fundamental class in Unity. It offers several key functions, such *Start* or *Update*, as well as access to the game objects that contain this script as a component. When a script is enabled, Start is called once before the first call to Update methods. If a script is enabled, Update is called once every frame. The *OnGUI* function is used to draw the user interface on the screen and handle GUI (Graphics User Interface) related events. The *OnTriggerEnter* and *OnTriggerExit* functions are used to manage interactions between Colliders.





Figure 4.2: Script lifecycle flowchart part no. 1[106].



Figure 4.3: Script lifecycle flowchart part no. 2 [106].

4.4 Building Information Model

The BIM model is created using the Scan to BIM methodolgy. The Scan to BIM methodology is grounded in the concept of reverse engineering, which is a process that involves scanning a physical object in 3D and then processing the data using CAD software to create a digital version of the object [107]. Scan To BIM provides 3D point clouds and mesh representations that can be utilized to recreate various elements within a digital environment while preserving all their structural characteristics. These digital representations can then be repurposed in the development of a BIM project.

Laser scanning of a physical environment or building enables the collection of real-world data, which is subsequently imported into a 3D modeling environment to create a point cloud. This point cloud can be used as a basis for generating CAD models or can be directly incorporated into BIM software such as Autodesk Revit. In addition to collecting point data, the 3D laser scanner captures color images, which are employed to create a lifelike 3D representation of the scanned area.



Figure 4.4: BIM model made in Revit version 2020 by Dapino [108].

The file format of the BIM model exported from Revit is IFC; however, this type of format cannot be used in Unity without Unity Reflect. Unity Reflect is a paid Revit plugin that allows BIM models to be used within immersive VR and AR experiences. Therefore, a conversion of the file from IFC format is required to allow a free view version of the BIM model within Unity. The transformation of the IFC file is facilitated through the utilization of the executable software known as COLLADA2GLTF-v2.1.5. This software serves the purpose of converting the IFC file into both eXtensible Markup Language (XML¹) and Digital Asset Exchange (DAE

¹The XML constitutes a markup language and file format designed for the storage, transmission, and reconstruction of diverse and arbitrary data. It establishes a set of guidelines for encoding

²) formats. In the context of the DAE format, a parameter denoted as "–use-elementguids" is employed to extract the Globally Unique Identifiers (GUIDs) associated with each constituent element within the BIM model.

The gLTF file is a widely used format in the field of computer graphics and 3D modeling. It is an open standard developed by the Khronos Group, specifically designed for efficient transmission and loading of 3D scenes and models in real-time applications [111]. One of the key advantages of the gLTF format is its compactness and efficiency. gLTF files are highly compressed, making them ideal for use in web applications, VR, and AR environments, as they load quickly and consume minimal bandwidth. This efficiency is achieved through techniques like binary data storage and a JSON-based structure for defining 3D models and scenes. gLTF files can contain various components of a 3D scene, including 3D mesh data, materials, animations, and even textures. This comprehensive representation allows for the seamless integration of 3D content into various platforms and applications, ranging from video games to architectural visualization tools [112].



Figure 4.5: Pipline to import the BIM model designed in Revit into Unity. 1) Output file format from Revit: IFC; 2) Output file format from COLLADA2IFC: XML, DAE, gLTF.

To import the gLTF format into Unity, it need to install the **GLTFUtility**, a plugin that allows importing and exporting gLTF files both in the editor and at runtime. However, it requires the installation of the **JSON.NET** package that is

documents in a format that is intelligible to humans while also being comprehensible by machines. XML's foundation can be traced back to the World Wide Web Consortium's XML 1.0 Specification of 1998, which serves as a seminal reference in conjunction with several other interconnected specifications, all of which adhere to the principles of open standards and are freely accessible [109].

²A DAE file serves as a 3D interchange file format employed for the purpose of facilitating the exchange of digital assets among diverse graphics applications. Such files may encompass elements such as images, textures, or, most commonly, 3D models. It is important to note that the DAE format is rooted in the COLLAborative Design Activity (COLLADA) XML schema, which is presently under the ownership and ongoing development efforts of Autodesk [110].
a well-liked high-capacity JSON library for .NET and the most commonly utilized library across the entire .NET landscape.



Figure 4.6: Screenshot of Unity showing in the hierarchy the HBim GameObject and its children labeled by their GUIDs.

Nonetheless, when imported into Unity, all the information linked to each instance of the BIM model is forfeited. In order to rectify this limitation, the XML file is employed to reassign each element of the gLTF model in Unity, ensuring that each attribute originally designated in Revit is appropriately linked to it.



Figure 4.7: Screenshot of Unity showing in the hierarchy the HBim GameObject and its children labeled by their correct name. This is made possible through the C.1 script.

To recreate the essence of BIM i.e., the set of geometry with data, 3 classes are constructed to first identify each IfcBuildingElements, then IfcPropertySet and IfcPropertySingleValue for the properties associated with each IfcBuildingElements. Through the script C.1, the correct instance name and all its properties are associated with each child of the model HBIM using the three classes described above.

#	lfc Building Element (Script)		0	; ;
		IfcBuildingElement		
Id		3h31oplQ12ne63YE0cQo0e		
Proper	ties		8	
= ► Ps = ► Ps = ▼ Al	et_DoorCommon et_QuantityTakeOff tro			
	Name	Altro		
	Properties		5	
	 ■ Categoria ■ Famiglia ■ Famiglia e tipo ■ ID tipo ■ Tipo 			
= ► Da = ► Fa = ► Qu	ati identità isi iote		+ -	
=⊽ Te	esto			
	Name	Testo		
	Properties			
	=▼ hBim Name Value	hBim		
			+ -	
=⊳ Vi	ncoli			

Figure 4.8: Unity screenshot showing in the inspector the IfcBuildinElement class associated with a child of the HBim GameObject.

The key to the data lies in the IfcPropertySet. As a property container, the IfcPropertySet serves to provide project information to all participants and over the entire life cycle of the building.

4.4.1 Heritage Building Information Modelling Application

Described how it is possible to obtain the BIM model in its entirety in a currently non-open application, now it is described how to obtain information related to the heritage part. Figure 4.8 shows the parameterization of an object using the hBim property, which in that specific case shows the name of a file in png format. However, that parameterization can be used to identify a server API or a link to historical information.

4.5 Design Thinking

Design Thinking is a problem-solving methodology that focuses on understanding users and their needs in order to create innovative and effective solutions. It is a human-centered approach that involves empathy, creativity, and experimentation [113].



Figure 4.9: Stages of the design thinking approach.

- E Through research, interviews, or other data-gathering techniques, this step comprises getting a handle on the needs, ideas, and behaviors of the consumers.
- The problem is identified in this stage by combining the empathy stage'sinsights and recognizing the major difficulties in light of the information gathered.
- In the ideation stage, numerous potential solutions to the issue determinedin the define stage were generated. It was a period of creativity where unorthodox ideas were encouraged to be explored.
- In this step, one or more of the concepts produced in the ideation stageare represented physically or digitally. Depending on the needs of the project, either a low-fidelity or high-fidelity prototype may be used.
- **T** Lastly, user feedback, gathered post-prototype evaluation, informs improvements to better address user needs and the identified issue.

Iterative processes are one of the main tenets of design thinking. As a result, the steps are not always sequential and can be repeated or re-visited to help in problem-solving [114].

Design thinking can be used in a wide range of settings, from product design and innovation to education and social impact. It is a flexible methodology that can be adapted to suit the needs of different projects and contexts, and it has become increasingly popular in recent years as a way to drive innovation and solve complex problems [115].

4.5.1 Understanding the Human-Needs

In order to understand what the needs of the end-users, subjects with ASD, are, in addition to looking for solutions proposed in the literature in different fields from education to museum settings, it is necessary to understand what stimuli are potentially dangerous for the users. The real environment with all its stimuli (thermal, visual, auditory, tactile), if controlled and designed appropriately for the user, can provide a peaceful experience. Reality understood as the environment in which the user finds himself can be a barrier for the user [116]. Indoor Environmental Quality (IEQ) is not unique for all users. In fact, depending on the type of user, neurotypical or neuroatipical, it can affect their mental state [117].





Figure 4.10: This scoping research highlights the significant differences in sensory perception between neurotypical and autistic groups as well as the lack of thorough recommendations for indoor environmental design targeted towards those with ASD. The findings show that more research is required, as well as the development of specialised indoor environmental standards, in order to increase the autonomy, happiness, and health of those with ASD [117].

Technology interposing itself between reality and the user can act as a facilitator.

4.5.2 Define the problem



Before defining the problem it turns out to be important to analyze the process of the museum visit. This process is complex and depends on many variables, such as the type of user and museum. A comprehensive analysis is provided by Recupero et al. who divide the visitation process into 3 major phases and describe them through activity diagrams [118]. The Activity Diagram, based on Young's (2008) Mental Model, identifies innovative design opportunities by mapping users' activities and goals against existing tools and services in the context of museum visits. It highlights key activities and critical tools, crucial for visitors to achieve their objectives [119].

Pre-visit



Figure 4.11: The opening segment of the Activity Diagram portrays two key aspects: first, the actions taken prior to the museum visit (such as researching the museum, organizing the trip, reaching the museum, and acquiring tickets), and second, the assortment of services, tools, and information from both the Ara Pacis Museum and external providers that visitors utilize to accomplish these tasks. [118]

Tour



Figure 4.12: The subsequent section of the Activity Diagram illustrates two critical components. In the upper portion, it delineates the central activities during the museum tour, encompassing curiosity satisfaction, knowledge acquisition, temporal reflection, monument observation, and positive emotional experiences. In the lower section, it outlines the characteristics of the "Ara as it was" tour and the ecosystem of museum artifacts that visitors utilize to engage in these activities. [118]

Post-visit



Figure 4.13: The subsequent part of the Activity Diagram illustrates additional key elements. In the upper section, it outlines core activities during the "Ara as it was" tour, including sharing the experience with others, utilizing headsets, and seeking comfort. It also encompasses two activities in the post-visit phase: reliving a similar experience and recommending it to others. In the lower section, it delineates the range of services, tools, and information available from the Ara Pacis Museum and external providers, which visitors leverage to engage in these activities. [118]

4.5.3 Potential Solutions

For each of the steps analyzed earlier, the potential digital solutions to be employed in each step are outlined in the tables below. In the realm of solutions, there are those that have already been executed and made available to the visitors, while others are being implemented and discussed here. The latter category encompasses a mobile application containing the BIM model of the building, videos created through video modeling techniques, elements of AAC present both within the application and within the videos, a prototype of AR, and one of VR.



Pre-visit

By following all the steps outlined in the activity diagram of the pre-museum visit phase(Fig.4.11), it is possible to map out all the potential digital tools and strategies utilized within the context of Palazzo Carignano.

1. Learn about the museum	Digital Solution
Step 1.A Find out about the museum	1.1 Social Network
	1.2 Video Modeling
Step 1.B Get information about the mu-	1.2 Website - Info Section
seum	1.3 Contact Museum
	1.4 Mobile App
2. Organize the visit	
Step 2.A Decide when to go	2.1 Website - Info Section
	2.2 Mobile App
Step 2.B Arrange the visit with others	2.3 Contact Museum
3. Reach the museum	
Step 3.A Reach the museum	3.1 Map and Navigation tools
	3.2 Mobile App
	3.3 Video Modeling
	3.4 VR Experience
4. Get the ticket	
Step 4.A Get the ticket	4.1 Website - Info Section
	4.2 Contact Museum
	4.3 Mobile App
	4.4 Video Modeling

Table 4.2: Tools and digital strategies are shown for each step of the pre-visit phase. All **highlighted** digital solutions refer to those that will be implemented here.

Tour

The complete activity diagram (Fig.4.12) adapted for the museum context is also applied during the museum visit phase.

5. Tour of the museum	Digital Solution
Step 5.A Satisfy the couriesity	5.1 Web Site
Step 5.B Acquire knowledge	5.2 Website - Info Section
	5.3 Mobile App
	5.4 AR Experience
Step 5.C Reflect about present and past	-
time	
Step 5.D Observe the monument	5.5 VR Experience
Step 5.E Fell positive emotions	5.6 Mobile App
	5.7 VR Experience

Table 4.3: Tools and digital strategies are shown for each step of the tour phase. All **highlighted** digital solutions refer to those that will be implemented here.

Post-Visit

At this stage, only a portion of the activity diagram (Fig.4.13) is being utilized as it is perceived to be less aligned with the context of the Palazzo Carignano museum.

6. Share the visit experience with others	Digital Solution
Step 6.A Exchange opinions	6.1 Mobile App
Step 6.B Take pictures of the experience	6.2 Social Network

Table 4.4: Tools and digital strategies are shown for each step of the post-visit phase. All **highlighted** digital solutions refer to those that will be implemented here.

4.6 Video Modeling

In the context of teaching social skills to individuals with ASD, video modeling is one of the interventions. Several studies demonstrate the effectiveness of using video modeling either on its own or in combination with social stories, another type of intervention [120, 121, 122]. To create the forthcoming videos, Powtoon is the chosen video creation tool. These videos simulate the process of visiting the museum, all the way up to requesting museum maps at the ticket counter, with the aim of producing videos suitable for video modeling purposes. In order the modeled videos are 9.



• Introduction Video: through gamification, 3 missions are shown with the intention of making it clear *why* 4.15, *when* 4.16, and *how* 4.17 to visit and reach the museum.



Figure 4.14: Video introductory frame.



Figure 4.16: 2nd mission: *When* to go to Palazzo Carignano?



Figure 4.15: 1st mission: *Why* go to Palazzo Carignano?



Figure 4.17: 3rd mission: *How* to reach Palzzo Carignano

• **Historical Video** (V0) shows the history through images and text of events and personalities that characterize Palazzo Carignano from its birth to its current use.



Figure 4.18: (4.18a) Video introductory frame; (4.18b) Timeline of the history of Palazzo Carignano.

• Video 1 (V1) illustrates how to reach Palazzo Carignano, highlighting the buildings that characterize the city of Turin.



Figure 4.19: (4.19a) Video introductoy frame; (4.19b) Example of a possible route to the museum.

• Video 2 (V2) brings attention back to the exterior of the building.



(b)

Figure 4.20: (4.20a) Video introductory frame; (4.20b) Example of a photograph of the building.

• Video 3 (V3) shows where the museum entrance is located.



Figure 4.21: (4.21a) Video introductory frame; (4.21b) The character shows what the entrance is.

• Video 4 (V4) shows where the ticket office is located and how to get there. It also simulates the action of purchasing a ticket and what element is required to purchase the ticket.



Figure 4.22: (4.22a) Video introductory frame; (4.22c) Show what is required to receive the ticket.

• Video 5 (V5) indicates to request the museum map with the goal of having a spatial reference during the visit.



Figure 4.23: (4.23a) Video introductory frame; (4.23b) Shows how to access the museum map.

• Video 6 (V6) shows how all goals were achieved before the visit, but brings compliance to the user's attention.



Figure 4.24: (4.24a) Video introductory frame; (4.24b) It shows an adept indicating to comply with the rules.

• Video 7 (V7) advises the user to use the routes section of the application during the visit.



Figure 4.25: (4.25a) Completed puzzle

The inductive video will be uploaded to a social network, allowing users to access its content. Meanwhile, videos spanning from V0 to V7 are stored on Google Drive and will be fetched by the application at runtime.

4.7 Mobile App

The primary objective of the application is to offer a service that facilitates museum access for neurodivergent individuals. In addition to offering alternative methods, which are often not found in traditional museum settings, such as social narratives, this application also provides standard museum services. These services encompass tasks like checking museum opening and closing hours, verifying ticket prices, and accessing audio guides.



To properly design the application, first the users who interact with the application are defined, from end users to museum staff. By defining the users, the application can be monitored throughout

its life cycle. Next, the platforms through which the service can be made available are analyzed.



Figure 4.26: Mobile app logo. The museum logo is used for the application logo and in addition the diagonally placed initial is also used.

Text serves as a foundational element within the user interface (UI). It serves the purpose of annotating diverse interactive components and delivering prompt context-specific assistance. As previously discussed, individuals with ASD commonly encounter challenges with reading comprehension. Therefore, the presence of a complex UI containing numerous text segments can hinder usability. It is crucial to structure textual UI elements thoughtfully to mitigate potential reading difficulties [123]. Text content is often associated with icons so as to identify the action that will bring that click.

4.7.1 Use Case Diagram

Official Definition of "Use Case Diagram" from IBM

"In UML, use-case diagrams model the behavior of a system and help to capture the requirements of the system. Use-case diagrams describe the high-level functions and scope of a system. These diagrams also identify the interactions between the system and its actors. The use cases and actors in use-case diagrams describe what the system does and how the actors use it, but not how the system operates internally" [124]

As evidenced by the definition above the use case diagram identifies use cases and actors and how they interact with each other and the system itself. The use case diagram in figure 4.27 shows the actors involved with the system. On the right are the human actors, such as end users, while on the left are the non-human actors, such as Google Drive and Google Translator. Google Drive acts as a server to request the data needed to compile the application properly, while Google Translator is used as a service to request audio files. The request response paradigm is used to request files via the free API.

However, the actors that interact with the management, maintenance of Google Drive data are different and will be described that sub-chapter below.

Regarding the use cases, they are categorized into four major areas. First, there is the loading process, which entails the retrieval of files related to museum management from Google Drive. Next, we have the application homepage, which is designed with the objective of displaying the BIM model of the building and granting access to all subsequent services. These services are further classified according to the type of data they use. Blue groups all use cases that use data related to museum management, while red groups those related to historical and artist data. A detailed description of each use case will follow in Chapter 4.7.3.



Figure 4.27: The use case diagram shows the actors involved with the system. On the left (human actors) the generic user using the application; on the right (non-human actors) are Google Drive and Google Translator. Also shown are the use cases that characterize the application divided according to the types of data they use.

4.7.2 Actors: Need to Integrate the Application Into a Practical Context

To integrate the application into a practical context and prevent the need for a technician or Information Technology (IT) personnel to recreate an executable of the application even for minor historical content changes, a decision has been made to segregate the historical/artistic content component from the programming component. To do this, it has been decided to use a Google Drive as a server to store all the data that the application needs for completeness. The application retrieves files based on their identifier (ID), which simplifies the work of all museum departments during maintenance. The Google Drive is structured into three distinct folder categories. (see fig.4.28).



Figure 4.28: Structure of Google Drive provided to users.

These types are as follows:

- 1. **Settings**. This folder organizes the files in JavaScript Object Notation (JSON) format IT_handling, video, paths and path_i. This folder has been designed for those in charge of the museum's IT area.
 - The **IT_handling** file associates the properties address, mobile, mail, weburl, timetable, price, and the GoogleForm url with the values corresponding to the file ID present within the same drive.
 - The **video** file organizes for the four languages (Italian, English, French, and Spanish) and for each language the videos within the application are proposed with their IDs that are downloaded while running the application.
 - The **paths** file contains the properties midday path, midnight path, and staircase. These three properties is the actual museum subdivision within the museum.
 - The generic file $path_i$ contains within it as many properties as there are

areas to be visited, and each property is associated with a value corresponding to the text file (brief art historical description) that will represent that area.

	Settings	
	video.json	
IT_handling.json	paths.json	
	path_i.json	

Figure 4.29: Structure of settings folder.

2. Managment. The folder in question contains all files related to the management of the museum both from the physical point of view such as opening and closing times, but also web address of the museum. This contains all the files indicated in the IT_handling section described above and has been designed for users in the museum management area.



Figure 4.30: Structure of management folder. This folder contains files in text format of formURL, webURL (related to website), address (Google Drive link), email and mobile number useful for reservations. While the Schedules and Prices files are in JSON format.

3. Multimedia content. This category includes all components associated with the multimedia content that is displayed within the application, for example, such as videos made using the video modeling technique, text containing descriptions of individual rooms, or general descriptions of the Palazzo. The category consists of three folders, respectively, video, Palazzo Carignano and "Percorsi". Figure 4.33 shows the organization of the "Percorsi" folder to which the Palazzo Carignano folder also refers. Within each room-specific folder are 4 files each for each language in which the application is available. Access to these types of folders has been provided for those within the museum who have the art historical skills.



Figure 4.31: Structure of paths folder. The Palazzo Carignano folder is similar to room i.

To prevent the application from becoming obsolete due to incorrectly defined schedules, description updates, or other issues, comprehensive guides are distributed to each operator. These guides aim to ensure the application remains current and provide instructions on the correct procedures for making updates. The guides can also serve as an access tool for the museum itself, enabling it to autonomously integrate an application maintenance program into its operations. The appendices A and C includes the following guides.

4.7.3 Description of Use Cases

The primary objective of this application is to offer a comprehensive suite of museum services through digital means, featuring user-friendly and intuitively designed interfaces specifically tailored for individuals within the ASD. In addition to presenting the museum's artistic and historical collections, the application is intended to encompass information pertaining to museum administration, as well as its operational hours of operation.

To realize the entire application, 8 scenes are made in Unity. In order, the **Before** scene used to download files via the Google Drive API. The **Home** scene representing the main page of the application from which it is possible view and interact with the BIM model of the Palazzo.



Figure 4.32: Links between scenes in Unity handled via the C.2 script. (Green) Scene 2 and Scene 2a represent the same functionality but provided in 2 different ways, one in text format, the other through the use of AAC. (Orange) Scene 3 and Scene 3a related to the paths section.

From the home via a drop-down menu it is possible to go to the other functionalities:

Palazzo Carignano, shows the V0 and a brief description of the palace. (Scene 1)

- Introduction, a checklist of actions to take to reach and visit the palace safely and independently. (Scene 2 and Scene 2a)
- Paths, allows you to view rooms via 360 images and audio descriptions and text. (Scene 3 and Scene 3a)
- Rules, shows the rules to be followed inside the museum. Each rule written in text formats is associated with an infographic via a popup. (Scene 4)

1. Loading

The following use case is realized in Unity's Before scene. The goal is to download files at application startup related to museum management. Upon application startup, the IT_handling file, which contains all management-related data, is downloaded via the HTTP protocol. The C.3 script allows precisely to initially download the IT_handling file and then to download all resources from Google Drive. The script is placed on the DownloadServer object This object is not destroyed on transition to the home page. This is done while a simple interface incorporating the application logo and the loading sign.

6	ð	~	Dow	nloadS	erver								S	tati	c 🔻
		Tag	Unta	gged			•	Lay	yer	Default					▼
▼	7	т	ransf	orm									0		:
	Pos	ition				Х	0		Y	31] z	-18	80		
	Rota	ation				х	0		Y	0	Z	0			
	Sca	le				Х	1		Y	1	Z	1			
T	#	✓ R	lesou	rce Re	quester	(Se	cript)						0		:
	Script			Resou	rceRe	qu	ester								
	Ser	ver L	Jrl												
	Req	luest	Dela	y		1									
▼	Res	ourc	e Ids										0		
	Lis	stisE	Empty												
													+		
	ld D	rive													
▼	Fet	ched	l Reso	ources									0		
	Lis	stisE	Empty												
													+		

Figure 4.33: Inspector that shows all the components of the DownloadServer object.



Figure 4.34: App Mockup - Loading Interface

2. Home



Figure 4.35: App Mockup - Home Interface

The home page displays the BIM model with its animation. This shows how to rotate and zoom the model. The C.4 script takes as input the touch data of the device being used and based on this rotates or zooms the model.

On the black panel in other it is possible to access all the management services of the museum. The management services of the museum are:

- TimeTable
- Ticket
- Position
- Language



Figure 4.36: App Mockup - Home Interface. Shows the animation created to indicate how to rotate and enlarge the model.

While at the bottom is a drop-down menu that allows the user to view the historical contents of the museum. In this case the exposed features are:

- Palazzo Carignano
- Introduction
- Path
- Rules



Figure 4.37: App Mockup - Home Interface. Shows what happens when the user clicks on the arrow to access the menu.

The timetable icon changes color based on the opening and closing of the museum. The colors are uniquely chosen. Red is chosen for closing, while green is chosen for opening.

2.1 - Language

The language pop-up allows the entire application to be set to the desired language. When the user clicks on the chosen language all videos are downloaded from Google Drive via script C.5.



Figure 4.38: App Mockup - Language pop-up.



Figure 4.39: App Mockup - Language pop-up. When the user selects the Italian language all the corresponding videos are downloaded. Similarly, it occurs when the user selects another language.

2.2 - TimePanel

The pop-up of timetable shows all days of the week colored red when the museum is closed and green when open, respectively. In addition, for days when the museum is open, the opening and closing times are shown. ARAASAC symbols are associated with these. All data are taken from the DownloadServer object.



Figure 4.40: (4.40a) ARASAAC closing symbol; (4.40b) ARASAAC opening symbol.



Figure 4.41: App Mockup - TimePanel Interface.

2.3 - Ticket

The following pop-up is intended to provide for all ticket-related needs. The data required to correctly fill out the pop-up ticket are:

- museum cell phone number;
- museum e-mail;

- url of the museum's web page;
- full ticket price;
- reduced ticket price ;

For the first 3 points, above, each is associated with a button that allows the desired action to be reached.



Figure 4.42: App Mockup - Ticket Interface.

2.4 - Position

When the user selects the location button this is redirected to the Google Drive web page of Palazzo Carignano.



Figure 4.43: App Mockup - Position Interface.

3.1 - Palazzo Carignano

The Palazzo Carignano feature aims to show through a video, V0, and a text description what is inside the museum. The text description is taken from Google Drive via HTTP protocol. The script C.7 in Unity is used for all video management.



Figure 4.44: App Mockup - Palazzo Carignano Interface.

This allows for the following:

- 1. Time controllers allow for advancing or retracting the video by 5 seconds.
- 2. Play/Pause button allow for stopping or playing the video.
- 3. Speed controllers allow for increasing or decreasing the speed of the video.
- 4. Enlarge/Reduce button allows displaying the video in full screen or reduced.
- 5. Time bar allows displaying the time of the running video.



Figure 4.45: Video preview, which shows all the components that a user can use during video playback.

3.2 - Introduction

Before detailing this feature, it is necessary to describe what causes its design. The function is designed to provide a checklist that guides the user through the following steps:

- 1. Reaching Palazzo Carignano.
- 2. Admiring the facade of the Palace.
- 3. Reaching the entrance.
- 4. Buying the ticket.
- 5. Requiring a ticket map.
- 6. Beginning the tour.

Associated with these are videos V1, V2, V3, V4, V5, V6, V7, and V8.



Figure 4.46: Summary of the guidebook to be used to visit the museum with accompanying videos.

	Raggiungere Ingresso.	Raggurgere fregersso.
3.2		Compare e Vagence
	Comprare il biglietto. Richiedore la magna del Palazzo.	
	interes is vote.	

Figure 4.47: App Mock up - Introduction Interface.

8 - AAC Introduction

The following feature is the same in terms of content as the previous one; however, the latter is provided differently. The text has been replaced with symbols from ARASAAC. Upon selection of these, a request is sent to Google Translator to receive audio input.



Figure 4.48: App Mock up - AAC Introduction Interface.

3.3 - Path

The paths section aims to create a digital tool that makes people fully understand what is inside the museum. three paths can be selected within the paths section.

- 1. Midday Apartment
- 2. Staircase
- 3. Midnight Apartment



Figure 4.49: App Mockup - Path Interface. The user can select the route they want to visit.

A class is created for each room belonging to each pathway to make the system scalable. The class shown in script C.6 characterizes each of the appropriations with the following parameters:

- Name indicates room's name;
- **Path** indicates path's name;
- ImageButton the image of the associated unselected button;
- ImageHButton the image of the associated selected button.
- **Plant** the image of plant;
- Material the 360° image of room;
- **Description** indicates the text description or ID file associated;
- Button Game Object of button associated;
- status boolean indicating whether the room is selected.

=▼ SALA DELLE BATTAGLIE				
Name	SALA DELLE BATTAGLIE			
Path				
Image Button	III Button	\odot		
Image H Button	III ButtonH	\odot		
Plant	. JPlant	\odot		
Material	 Material 	\odot		
Description	1GJvwZi4TETkaFW3o77EFbR0Hg7Z46	sxť		
Button	⊕ Button	\odot		
Status				

Figure 4.50: Example of a room class within Unity's inspector

Each path, on the other hand, is managed by the ManagePath script that allows you to add the number of rooms, set parameters for each room. In addition, this allows for an audio file using the free Google translator API. Given the character limitations of the latter, a subdivision of the text into subsections is necessary, paying attention to punctuation.



Figure 4.51: App Mockup - Path Interface. Example of an interactive map.

	# 🗸 Manage Path (Script)) Ø.≓					
		ManagePath					
	Functionality	Path					
	Dath						
	Name Path Museum	Midday					
	Rooms						
	Rooms		8				
	■ APPARTAMENTO DI ME	ZZOGIORNO					
	= ► SALA DEI VALLETTI A PI	IEDI					
	= ► SALA DEI PAGGI						
	SALA DELLE BATTAGLIE						
	= ▷ SALA DELLE STAGIONI						
	= ► CAMERA DA LETTO						
	= P STODIO DI CARLO ALBE	RIO					
			+	-			
	ObjectControl						
	Path Image	♡RawImage			\odot		
	Name Text	©Text			\odot		
	Description Text	©Text			\odot		
	Camera	© Camera			\odot		
	Texts		9				
	= Element 0	L'appartamento degli ultimi princi	pi di	Ca	riç		
	Element 1	chiamate Sala dei Valletti a piedi	e Sa	la d	le		
	Element 2	che fungevano da anticamere per	le s	ale	d		
	Element 3	Queste ultime sono state realizza	te ne	el 17	71		
	Element 4	ma hanno perso gran parte delle d	leco	raz	io		
	= Element 5	il committente,					
	= Element 6	e su Guarino Guarini, l'architetto d	lel p	alaz	zz		
	= Element 7	dipinta da Giovanni Battista Pozzo	o co	n qı	зL		
E١	ventSystem						

Figure 4.52: Example of a ManagePath within Unity's inspector.



Figure 4.53: 360° image showing the hallway of Palazzo Carignano.

3.4 - Rules

This feature is intended to describe what the rules within the museum are uniquely. The interface shows the rules, and by selecting on each rule, a pop-up appears that invokes it.



Figure 4.54: (4.54a) Turn off the mobile phone ringer; (4.54b) Do not eat; (4.54c) Do not run; (4.54d) Do not use the flash; (4.54e) Do not touch the artworks and wall; (4.54f) Do not use shout.



Figure 4.55: App Mockup - Rules Interface.

11 - GoogleForm

When the user selects the location button this is redirected to the Google Form web page. The form presents a questionnaire with the objective of collecting data on experience with the application.



Figure 4.56: App Mockup - Google Form Interface.

4.7.4 Platforms

The application is designed for Android devices, version no lower than 5.0, but not for IoS devices, however this step should not be problematic.

Identification				
Override Default Package Name				
Package Name	com.Polito.AppPalazzoCarignano			
Version*	0.1			
Bundle Version Code	1			
Minimum API Level	Android 5.0 'Lollipop' (API level 21) 🔻			
Target API Level	Automatic (highest installed) 🗾 👻			

Figure 4.57: Minimum Android API setting.

4.7.5 Guides for all actors

In addition to providing the service of the mobile application, there are also two guides that allow greater accessibility to the system. Guide A is designed for practitioners working within Palazzo Carignano, this one shows how to be able to edit descriptions within the Google Drive so that experts can be left with their own communication strategy. The release of the Drive is the key to all-around accessibility. While Guide B, "Guide for All", written in Italian with the AAC aims to illustrate how to use the application step by step, detailing each step. Finally, the Guide C for IT staff section is a collection of meaningful scripts for implementing the services developed, from the mobile application to those that follow.
4.8 Augmented Reality Experience

AR has much potential both in the museum context and for users on the ASD. Starting from the definition of AR that adds information to reality, this can be used, for example, to have content in AAC when artwork or a particular object is framed with a cell phone. In this section, its potential applications in the museum context will be discussed, and a low-level prototype will be proposed, analyzing what frameworks allow the realization of these in Unity.



Starting from what may be the causes that lead a visitor with ASD to be in situations of over stimulation and consequent unsafe for himself, solutions with AR are proposed in following table.

Situation of over stimulation	AR Solution
1. Lack of indications or poorly visible	AR guide
indications	
2. Lighting too strong	Frame analysis to identify illumination
	greater than a threshold
3. Sound too strong	Audio analysis to identify sound greater
	than a threshold
4. Unreadable descriptions	Descriptions in AAC

Table 4.5: Identification of situations where AR is used to inform the user to takecautions or directly help the user.

4.8.1 Framework for Augmented Reality in Unity

The production of AR experiences for several platforms, including iOS and Android, is made easier with the help of the potent AR Foundation framework for Unity developers. The ARKit (for iOS) and ARCore (for Android) native AR technologies offered by Apple and Google are connected by this framework to Unity's cross-platform development capabilities [125].

Relevant features provided are:

- **AR Session**. By enabling or disabling augmented reality on the target system, the ARSession component manages the entire life cycle of an AR experience.
- **Device tracking** uses the XROrigin component to automatically manage device tracking and object change for tracked objects in Unity's coordinate system.
- 2D Image tracking throughs the supervised image manager, every image in the environment is converted into a GameObject. It is crucial to advise the manager to look for a collection of reference images that have been put together into a reference image library before detecting an image. The manager is only able to detect photos that are present in this library [126].

Unity's AR Foundation Supported Features

Functionality	ARCore	ARKit	Magic Leap	HoloLens
Device tracking	 Image: A second s	~	 Image: A second s	 Image: A second s
Plane tracking	~	~	 Image: A second s	
Point clouds	 Image: A second s	~		
Anchors	 Image: A second s	~	 Image: A second s	×
Light estimation	 Image: A second s	~		
Environment probes	 Image: A second s	~		
Face tracking	~	~		
Meshing			 Image: A second s	 Image: A second s
2D Image tracking	~	~		
Raycast	~	~	\checkmark	
Pass-through video	 Image: A second s	~		
Session management	~	~	~	~

Figure 4.58: Unity's AR Foundation supported features [127].

4.8.2 Image Tracking

Using AR Foundation's extensibility propriety, it is possible to customize all the types of features it offers. C.8 script allows one-to-one correspondence between tracked image and corresponding prefab. The prefab can be of any type from a panel containing information to a 3D object. The library of reference images are shown below. Although the prototype shown is low-level, it has great potential, because referring to the definition of AR as a technology that interposes itself between real space and virtual space, the content that is proposed can be of any kind. Not only a model with the mere intent of visualisation as shown in the picture but it can be informative. Furthermore, within the app vie given the possibility of applying a colour filter to images taken from the mobile phone, simulating and recreating a virtual sensory bag. With the aim in the case of over-stimulation due to intense colours, strong light to mitigate this situation.

Reference Image Library (XR F	Reference Image Library)	0 ‡ i
		Open
× Select		
Name	HBim	
Specify Size		
Keep Texture at Runtime		
× Select		
Name	Gio	
Specify Size		
Keep Texture at Runtime		
× Select		
Name	territorio01	
Specify Size		
Keep Texture at Runtime		
	Add Image	

Figure 4.59: Screenshot of the reference image library object within the Unity inspector.



Figure 4.60: (4.60a) Tracked image; (4.60b) Screenshot of the AR app when the image on the left is drawn.

4.9 Virtual Reality Experience

There is a thoughtful discussion on the benefits of VR technology in the fields of education and rehabilitation for various clinical groups [128, 129, 130]. But VR unlike AR does not come between the user and reality. Therefore, the design of the virtual environment must be designed appropriately to try not to overstimulate the user. The objective of the VR experience is to create a situation in which the user can walk around the surroundings of the museum and reach it. Once this is reached, he or she can admire the structure of the building. The user is accompanied by an avatar, Gio, who can assume various functions. The following subchapters will



describe the devices that were used, the framwork required for the implementation of this experience in Unity, the design of the user, the environment and the suppository avatar.



Figure 4.61: VR app logo. The museum logo is used for logo and in addition the diagonally placed initial is also used.

4.9.1 Hardware for Virtual Reality

The following devices are used for the project:

• SteamVR Base Stations 2.0 reaching out to around 5 meters, the laser lines and several sync pulses sweep the room. For any positionally tracked equipment, including the HMDs and controllers, they act as reference points. The laser-based tracking system is the Lighthouse. Lighthouse was created by Valve for SteamVR and the HTC Vive. Each base station has two fast spinning laser emitters as well as the IR beacon known as the Sync Blinker. While one of the lasers sweeps a beam across the room, the Sync Blinker fires synchronization pulses 60 times per second. Controllers and HMD receivers pick up on both the laser beam and the synchronization pulse. The receiver calculates the laser beam's precise position by measuring the interval between the synchronization pulse and the laser beam's arrival. When two base stations are used, the position and orientation in the room's 3D space are established [131, 132].



Figure 4.62: SteamVR 2.0 base station manufacturers' recommended configuration [133].

• HTC Vive Pro 2 HMD allows scenarios to be viewed in VR using its lenses. The specifications are shown in Table 1.1. The device is chosen over its competitors because it presents better results in terms of graphics resolution.



Figure 4.63: HTC Vive Pro 2 HMD [134].

• 2 HTC Vive Pro 2 controllers. With 24 sensors, a multi-purpose trackpad, a dual-stage trigger, HD haptic feedback, and a rechargeable battery. The HTC VIVE Pro Controller enables wireless interaction with the virtual world.



Figure 4.64: HTC Vive Pro 2 controllers and their configuration[135].

• Vive Tracker, a device that allows to track the location and orientation of any object in VR. It can be paired with other devices that ensure correct usage or proper ergonomics. For example, in the present case it is used with waist and wrist straps.



Figure 4.65: Vive Tracker device [134].

All of the above-described controllers use Inertial Measurement Units (IMUs) technology, which is widely used in the context of biomedical engineering, for example,

to evaluate gait analysis. The gait is considered as the sixth vital parameter [136]. However, in these applications it is necessary to evaluate the precision and accuracy of the acquired measurements.

4.9.2 Framework for Virtual Reality in Unity

Valve Software developed the SteamVR Unity plugin, or just SteamVR, in 2015 [137]. The same business that introduced VR headsets like the Vive and Index is also known for creating Steam, the well-known PC game distribution platform.

User

The player prefabrication provided by SteamVR is used for user realisation. The prefab allows the visualisation of the virtual environment via the HMD and to interact through the controllers with virtual objects.



Figure 4.66: Screenshot of the hierarchy and inspector of Unity where the prefabricated SteamVR Player is shown.

The GameObject VRCamera child represents the HMD, while the LeftHand and RightHand children correspond to the two controllers.

4.9.3 Virtual Environment

The same procedure as in Chapter 4.4 is used to construct the virtual environment. In addition to the BIM model of the building, the model of the areas surrounding the museum is also imported in order to contextualise the experience.



Figure 4.67: Screenshot of the environment object within the Unity inspector. This consists of the Carignano object representing the BIM model in gLTF format and Turin with all its children with their labels.

The area surrounding the museum is characterised by meshes divided according to their function in reality; e.g. roof, road, wall, etc. Each of these is manually associated with the TeleportArea script which allows or disallows the user to teleport to the corresponding area. The TeleportArea script is provided by SteamVR plugin. Teleportation is only made possible on the sidewalk Child of Turin GameObject.



Figure 4.68: Virtual environment perspective number 1.



Figure 4.69: Virtual environment perspective number 2.

4.9.4 Avatar

One of the main problems of museum VR applications is the lack of interaction with other users [138]. To compensate for this lack, an avatar is created to follow the user from the outside. The functions of the avatar can be mainly two:

- 1. the caregiver wearing devices as well as the user with autism could make him/her feel comfortable.
- 2. the museum guide can wear the devices in order to guide the user and provide all the necessary details.



Figure 4.70: Model of the avatar used as a user within the virtual reality experience.

To bring the avatar model back into VR, 3 Vive Trackers are used. The positioning set-up is as follows:

- Vive Trackers no. 1 is strapped on the pelvis;
- Vive Trackers no. 2 is placed at 2 cm of the right elbow;
- Vive Trackers no. 3 is placed at 2 cm of the left elbow.



Figure 4.71: Model of the avatar used as a user within the virtual reality experience.

The avatar model is imported into Unity in gLTF format.

😭 GameObject 😭 Gio 😭 Body 💮 EyeR 💮 EyeL 😭 Head 😭 Headset 😭 Sphere 😭 Sphere (1) 🔻 😭 Sphere (2) 🖓 ArmL 🔻 😭 Sphere (3) 🕅 ArmR 🕨 😭 Logo

Figure 4.72: Screenshot of the GameObject within the Unity inspector that represents avatar Gio.

To track the orientation and position of the body the GameObject is associated

with the class $SteamVR_TrackedObject$. All children of the GameObject are associated with a Collider. Two classes HandScript and HandScriptTest similar to $SteamVR_TrackedObject$ are created, which in addition to tracking position evaluate collisions between the avatar's arms and body. Class HandScriptTest verifies that there has been a collision, while class HandScript keeps track of the position so that it renders properly. GameObjects Spere, Sphere(1), Sphere(2) and Sphere(3) simulate the glenohumeral joint. At the GameObjects Spere, Sphere(1) are attached class HandScriptTest, while at the other two are attached HandScript.

Chapter 5

Results and discussion

This chapter comprehensively elucidates the multiple phases of testing currently taking place within each project, providing a detailed account of the results continually emerging throughout the ongoing research activity. The participants actively engaged in these testing phases include a diverse group of individuals, encompassing seasoned professionals with expertise in the field and general users who are actively utilizing the applications under audit. It should be stressed that all the stages described above from empathizing with end users to the prototyping stage were shown in a linear manner; however, this was not confirming the non linearity of the method itself.



5.0.1 Meeting of December 5, 2022

During the meeting at 7 p.m, the validation of actors is being conducted, which includes professionals and institutions such as the Direzione Regionale dei Musei, associations dedicated to autism (Centro Regionale Disturbi Spettro Autistico, ANGSA, and Cuori Blu). Only the videos and the VR application are being subjected to analysis. This evaluation, which is being conducted in VRLab, reveals several issues, including a lack of contrast in the videos, a high-speed presentation of the videos, ill-defined rules, and the necessity of delivering this service through appropriate platforms. An intriguing intervention is emerging, whereby the videos are being translated into the application, addressing concerns related to the videos' length, limited interactivity, and contextualization.

5.0.2 Meeting of May 17, 2023

At 7 p.m, in the VRLab, the meeting convenes with the presence of Rotary, Rotaract, and the specialized neurologist, Dr. Keller. The showcased services encompass the mobile app and the integration of contextualized and edited videos within the application. It is discerned from this meeting that the absence of audio in the videos might pose a potential issue. Critically, there are no comments regarding the contrast and speed of the videos, as they have been appropriately adjusted. However, in relation to the application itself, no need for redefinition is identified.

5.0.3 Meeting of May 29, 2023

The only participant at this meeting, which is taking place inside Palazzo Carignano, is the Direzione Regionale dei Musei. The evaluation of the application's viability for prospective integration into the museum itself is the main topic on the agenda. Several important factors have come to light as a result of the meeting. First of all, it is highly relevant to include the knowledge of the museum's staff in the service. Second, the potential benefit of creating a multilingual application is becoming more accessible. For the former, the suggested option is to use Google Drive as a server to share the information, and for the latter, to start prototyping and implementing techniques aimed at making the application available in additional languages besides Italian, such as French, Spanish, and English.

5.1 Users feedback

There are 14 users in all who have tested the mobile app and/or VR experience. These are between the ages of 6 and 35. Users answer questions designed to analyse their use of technology within museums, how they rate in terms of accessibility of the virtual and mobile application in all its parts, how good the BIM is and finally whether the use of virtual reality can be used as a tool to increase people's quality of life. 50.0 % say they had never experienced a museum experience using technology, while the remainder indicated that the medium they used most was mobile applications. In addition, 1st question investigates which of these tools lead to a more accessible museum.



It is worth noting that with the first question investigating in terms of accessibility which means people think is most efficient, users report that virtual and augmented reality are the means considered most efficient for more than 50 per cent of the applicants.

5.1.1 Building Information Model Resolution

The 2nd question seeks to understand whether users liked the resolution of BIM models. Users can respond using a scale, with 1 denoting total disagreement and 5 denoting absolute agreement.



Average score BIM resolution: $\bigstar \bigstar \bigstar \bigstar \bigstar \bigstar = 4.14/5.00$

5.1.2 Mobile App

A total of 10 users have tested the mobile application. Each is asked which of the app's functionalities are least efficient, whether they have ever used AAC, and whether this tool is suitable in this context.



The following questions seek to investigate for each of the features exhibited by the application their how much they contribute to the accessibility of the museum. For each question the user can answer on a discrete scale with scores ranging from 1 indicating totally disagree to 5 totally agree.

Mobile App. 2nd question

Do you think the 'Palazzo Carignano' feature is efficient in terms of accessibility?

(1: strongly disagree - 2: disagree - 3: neutral - 4: agree - 5: strongly agree)





Do you think the 'Introduzione alla visita' feature is efficient in terms of accessibility?

(1: strongly disagree - 2: disagree - 3: neutral - 4: agree - 5: strongly agree)





Mobile App. 5th question Do you think the 'Regole' feature is efficient in terms of accessibility? (1: strongly disagree - 2: disagree - 3: neutral - 4: agree - 5: strongly agree) 1 Occurrences/# subjects 0.80.60.40.20 2 3 1 45Categories Mobile App. 6th question Do you think the 'Info' feature is efficient in terms of accessibility? (1: strongly disagree - 2: disagree - 3: neutral - 4: agree - 5: strongly agree) 1 Occurrences/# subjects 0.80.60.4

Summarizing, the feature that users find to be most efficient is Introduction (average score equals to 4.5), while the 2 least are Palazzo Carignano and Rules confirmed both by comparing average rates (both with average score equals to 3.8) but also with the 1st question. Finally, 80 percent of individuals report that they have never used AAC, and that it fully fits the project in question.

2

3

Categories

4

5

0.2

0

1

Features	Average score
Palazzo Carignano	★★★★ 3.8/5.0
Introduction	** * ** 4.5/5.0
Path	★★★★ 4.0/5.0
Rules	★★★★ 3.8/5.0
Info	★★★★ 4.3/5.0

Table 5.1: Average accessibility scores collected from 10 subjects for each feature exposed by the app.

5.1.3 Virtual Reality Experience

In this case, for virtual reality experience the only element under analysis is the presence of the GIO avatar. Users are asked if this makes the experience more stimulating. All users confirmed that the presence of this makes the experience more stimulating but this is not preferable to a human avatar.

Chapter 6 Conclusion

The effort to make culture accessible must be a priority of all museums as directed by ICOM [15]. However, this process requires the involvement of multiple actors with different experiences. It cannot be supported by only one professional figure but multidisciplinary teams are the solution of the process itself [66]. The use of technological means is an alternative to traditional means, but these must be designed paying attention to the end users. However, making a service accessible to a specific user should not exclude others, but a fair compromise must be made to include everyone in the design. An alternative may be to design specific user experiences that are customizable to the user who will use them. As for the developed project this needs improvement regarding the two XR experiences, while for the mobile app it will be important to monitor users' feedback to make consistent changes. HBIM is an important solution for collecting and sharing historical cultural data, and through the shift from BIM-based software to non-BIM-based software it demonstrates its power. This shift is a challenge that must affect all disciplines, as every action in our lives happens in a place and being able to map this will be able to make people's lives better.

On a final note, the project can be seen as a potential, relevant contribution to my country, as it indeed identifies as the world's richest cultural heritage – which along with contemplation and touristic sourcing, surely needs digitization and accessibility to all.

Appendix A Guide for Museum Staff

This guide aims to explain how museum staff can modify information within Google Drive in order to provide the most up-to-date information to users through the mobile app.



Figure A.1: Guide for Museum Staff, page 1.

)	ORGANISATION OF GOOGLE DRIVE	
	APP PALAZZO CARIGNANO	
	Palazzo Carignano Settings Castione Carignano	
	Percorsi	
		Politecnico di Torino

Figure A.2: Guide for Museum Staff, page 2.

_		•
		-
	-	
		_

1

Which folders CAN BE MODIFIED

Gestione Palazzo Carignano	Settings	×	
Palazzo Carignano	Gestione		
	Palazzo Carignano		
Percorsi	Video		Politernico

Figure A.3: Guide for Museum Staff, page 3.

	 ⊘ Anteprima Q Apri con >> 	Documenti Google
//	음t Condividi 2	Text Editor
	Copia link	Applicazioni consigliate
	Aggiungi scorciatoia a Drive	DocHub - PDF Sign and Edit
	 Sposta in 	+ Callega altre applicazioni
	🕁 Aggiungi a Speciali	
	ninomina	The App sature computer
	 Visualizza dettagli 	
	Gestisci versioni	
	Crea una copia	
	🛃 Scarica	
	III Rimuqvi	1 GI >

Figure A.4: Guide for Museum Staff, page 4.

CONTENTS OF «G	ESTIONE» FOLDER	
formURL.txt	numero.txt	
indirizzo.txt	Orari.json	webURL.txt
mail.txt	Prezzi.json	
		Politi di To

Figure A.5: Guide for Museum Staff, page 5.

{		
	"Days":	
	"Monday" : true, "Tuesday" : false, "Wednesday" : true.	true = IS OPENED
	"Thursday" : true,	
	"Friday" : true, "Saturday" : true, "Sunday" : true	false = IS CLOSED
	},	
	"Hours":	
	"Opened" : 10,	
	"Closed" : 18	

Figure A.6: Guide for Museum Staff, page 6.

it.txt	fr.txt	
en.txt	es.txt	<u> </u>

Figure A.7: Guide for Museum Staff, page 7.



Figure A.8: Guide for Museum Staff, page 8.



Figure A.9: Guide for Museum Staff, page 9.



Figure A.10: Guide for Museum Staff, page 10.

THANKS FOR YOUR ATTENTION



Figure A.11: Guide for Museum Staff, page 11.

Appendix B Guide for Users

This guide illustrates how use the mobile app at end users, so as to facilitate usability and navigability within the app. The guide is written using the AAC with ARASACC symbols.



Figure B.1: Guide for users, page 1.





Figure B.2: Guide for users, page 2.



Figure B.3: Guide for users, page 3.



Figure B.4: Guide for users, page 4.



Figure B.5: Guide for users, page 5.



Figure B.6: Guide for users, page 6.



Figure B.7: Guide for users, page 7.



Figure B.8: Guide for users, page 8.



Figure B.9: Guide for users, page 9.



Figure B.10: Guide for users, page 10.



Figure B.11: Guide for users, page 11.



Figure B.12: Guide for users, page 12.



Figure B.13: Guide for users, page 13.



Figure B.14: Guide for users, page 14.



Figure B.15: Guide for users, page 15.



Figure B.16: Guide for users, page 16.



Figure B.17: Guide for users, page 17.



Figure B.18: Guide for users, page 18.



Figure B.19: Guide for users, page 19.


Figure B.20: Guide for users, page 19.



Figure B.21: Guide for users, page 20.



Figure B.22: Guide for users, page 21.



Figure B.23: Guide for users, page 22.



Figure B.24: Guide for users, page 23.



Figure B.25: Guide for users, page 24.





Figure B.27: Guide for users, page 26.



Figure B.28: Guide for users, page 27.

Appendix C

Guide for IT staff

This guide (collection of scripts) is intended to leave a legacy for future developers of the application so as to reduce the risk of obsolescence and system failure.

Listing C.1: IFCDataLoader.cs script - it allows each child of the parent GameObject (BIM) to be associated with the correct name, the GUID in the ID section is saved, and also all the associated properties by exploiting the relationships in the XML file.

```
using UnityEngine;
1
  using System.Collections.Generic;
2
  using System.Xml;
3
  using System;
4
5
  public class IFCDataLoader : MonoBehaviour
6
  {
\overline{7}
       public string xmlFilePath =
8
          "Assets/Environment/Carignano/HBim.xml";
       public XmlDocument xmlDoc;
9
10
       void Awake()
11
       {
12
           xmlDoc = new XmlDocument();
13
           xmlDoc.Load(xmlFilePath);
14
15
           foreach (Transform child in transform)
16
            ſ
17
                string targetBuildingElementId = child.name;
18
                if
19
                   (!string.IsNullOrEmpty(targetBuildingElementId))
                {
20
                     LoadDataFromXML(targetBuildingElementId,
21
                        child);
                }
22
                else
23
                {
24
```

```
Debug.LogError("Please specify the
25
                       target IfcBuildingElement ID.");
                }
26
           }
27
       }
28
29
30
       void LoadDataFromXML(string targetBuildingElementId,
31
          Transform child)
       {
32
           try
33
           {
34
                XmlNode targetNode =
35
                   xmlDoc.SelectSingleNode($"//*[@id='{targetBuildingEleme
36
                if (targetNode != null)
37
                {
38
                    child.name =
39
                       targetNode.Attributes["Name"].Value;
40
                    // Assign the targetBuildingElement to
41
                       the child GameObject
                    IfcBuildingElement
42
                       buildingElementComponent =
                       child.gameObject.AddComponent<IfcBuildingElement>()
                    buildingElementComponent.Id =
43
                       targetBuildingElementId;
44
                    XmlNodeList propertySetNodes =
45
                       targetNode.SelectNodes(".//IfcPropertySet");
46
                    foreach (XmlNode propertySetNode in
47
                       propertySetNodes)
                    {
48
                         IfcPropertySet propertySet = new
49
                            IfcPropertySet();
                         propertySet =
50
                            LoadPropertyFromXML(propertySetNode.Attributes
                         buildingElementComponent.Properties.Add(propertyS
51
                    }
52
53
                }
54
                else
55
                {
56
```

```
Debug.LogError($"No IfcBuildingElement
57
                       found with ID:
                       {targetBuildingElementId}");
                }
58
           }
59
           catch (Exception e)
60
           {
61
                Debug.LogError($"Error loading XML:
62
                   {e.Message}");
           }
63
       }
64
65
       public IfcPropertySet LoadPropertyFromXML(string
66
          propertySetId)
       {
67
           IfcPropertySet propertySet = new
68
              IfcPropertySet();
69
           try
70
           {
71
                XmlNode propertySetNode =
72
                   xmlDoc.SelectSingleNode($"//*[@id='{propertySetId}']")
73
                if (propertySetNode != null)
74
                {
75
                    propertySet.Name =
76
                       propertySetNode.Attributes["Name"].Value;
77
                    XmlNodeList propertyNodes =
78
                       propertySetNode.SelectNodes(".//IfcPropertySingleVa
79
                    foreach (XmlNode propertyNode in
80
                       propertyNodes)
                    {
81
                         string propertyName =
82
                            propertyNode.Attributes["Name"]?.Value;
                         string propertyValue =
83
                            propertyNode.Attributes["NominalValue"]?.Value
84
                         IfcProperty property = new
85
                            IfcProperty
                         {
86
                             Name = propertyName,
87
                             Value = propertyValue
88
                         };
89
90
```

```
propertySet.Properties.Add(property);
91
                      }
92
                 }
93
                  else
94
                  {
95
                      Debug.LogError($"No IfcPropertySet found
96
                          with ID: {propertySetId}");
                  }
97
             }
98
             catch (Exception e)
99
             {
100
                  Debug.LogError($"Error loading property set
101
                     from XML: {e.Message}");
             }
102
103
             return propertySet;
104
        }
105
   }
106
```

Listing C.2: SceneChanger.cs script - Through the sceneName string, it is possible to change scenes when a button is pressed by the user.

```
// Import the directives
1
  using UnityEngine;
2
  using UnityEngine.SceneManagement;
3
4
  public class SceneChanger : MonoBehaviour
5
  {
6
       public void ChangeScene(string sceneName)
7
       {
8
           SceneManager.LoadScene(sceneName); // Load the
9
              scene with the specified name
       }
10
  }
11
```

Listing C.3: ResourceRequester.cs script -

```
// Import the directives
1
  using System.Collections;
2
  using System.Collections.Generic;
3
  using UnityEngine;
4
  using UnityEngine.UI;
5
  using UnityEngine.Networking;
6
  using UnityEngine.SceneManagement;
\overline{7}
  using Newtonsoft.Json;
8
9
  public class ResourceRequester : MonoBehaviour
10
       {
11
```

```
public static ResourceRequester Instance; //
12
              Create an Istance of ResourceRequester
13
           public string serverUrl; // Replace with your
14
              server URL
           public float requestDelay = 1f; // Delay between
15
              consecutive requests
           public string[] resourceIds; // List of resource
16
              IDs
           public string idDrive = "XXXX";
17
           public List<string> fetchedResources; // List to
18
              store the fetched resources
19
           private bool isOK = false;
20
           private Coroutine fetchCoroutine;
21
           private GameObject loadingObject;
22
           private Text loadingText;
23
           private float dotInterval = 0.5f;
24
25
           private void Awake()
26
           ł
27
                if (Instance != null)
28
               ł
29
                    Destroy(gameObject);
30
                    return;
31
               }
32
               Instance = this;
33
               DontDestroyOnLoad(gameObject);
34
           }
35
36
           private void Start()
37
           ł
38
                loadingObject = GameObject.Find("TextColor");
39
                loadingText =
40
                  loadingObject.GetComponent<Text>();
41
               // Load the server URL from a text asset
42
                serverUrl =
43
                  Resources.Load<TextAsset>("urlDownload").text;
44
               // Start fetching the data and populate the
45
                  resource IDs
               StartCoroutine(AnimateLoadingText());
46
               fetchCoroutine =
47
                  StartCoroutine(GetDataHandling(serverUrl
                  + idDrive, 2));
```

48

} 4950private IEnumerator WaitForDataAndSendRequests() 51{ 52yield return new WaitUntil(() => isOK); // 53 Wait until the data is fetched and processed 54// Start sending requests to fetch the 55resources StartCoroutine(SendRequests()); 56} 5758 private IEnumerator SendRequests() 59{ 60 fetchedResources = new List<string>(); 6162 for (int i = 0; i < resourceIds.Length; i++)</pre> 63 { 64 string resourceId = resourceIds[i]; 65 string requestUrl = serverUrl + 66 resourceId; 67 UnityWebRequest request = 68 UnityWebRequest.Get(requestUrl); yield return request.SendWebRequest(); 69 70 if (request.result == 71UnityWebRequest.Result.Success) { 72string resourceData = 73 request.downloadHandler.text; fetchedResources.Add(resourceData); 74Debug.Log("Received resource: " + 75resourceData); } 76else 77 { 78 Debug.LogError("Error fetching 79 resource: " + request.error); } 80 81 request.Dispose(); 82 83

```
yield return new
84
                        WaitForSeconds(requestDelay);
                }
85
86
                // All requests completed
87
                Debug.Log("All resources fetched. Total: " +
88
                   fetchedResources.Count);
89
                // Do further processing with the fetched
90
                   resources as needed
                // For example, you can iterate over the
91
                   fetchedResources list and perform
                   operations on each resource.
                // Check if all resources are downloaded
92
                   correctly
                if (fetchedResources.Count ==
93
                   resourceIds.Length)
                {
94
                     // Load the next scene if all resources
95
                        are downloaded correctly
                     LoadNextScene();
96
                }
97
                else
98
                {
99
                     StopCoroutine(AnimateLoadingText());
100
101
                     GameObject panelObject =
102
                        GameObject.Find("PanelColor");
                     if(panelObject != null)
103
                     {
104
                         Color CloseColor;
105
                         ColorUtility.TryParseHtmlString("#931100",
106
                            out CloseColor);
                         panelObject.GetComponent<Image>().color
107
                            = CloseColor;
108
                         loadingText.text = "Restart the app";
109
110
                     }
111
112
113
                     ShowInternetConnectionMessage();
114
                }
115
            }
116
117
```

```
private IEnumerator GetDataHandling(string url,
118
               int maxRetryCount)
            {
119
                int retryCount = 0;
120
121
                while (retryCount < maxRetryCount)</pre>
122
                {
123
                     UnityWebRequest request =
124
                        UnityWebRequest.Get(url);
                     yield return request.SendWebRequest();
125
126
                        (request.result ==
                     if
127
                        UnityWebRequest.Result.Success)
                     {
128
                          // Deserialize the JSON data into a
129
                             Dictionary
                         Dictionary<string, string> data =
130
                             JsonConvert.DeserializeObject<Dictionary<string
                             string >>(request.downloadHandler.text);
                          resourceIds =
131
                             ExtractDictionaryValues(data);
                          isOK = true;
132
133
                          // Start sending requests to fetch
134
                             the resources after the data is
                             fetched
                          StartCoroutine(WaitForDataAndSendRequests());
135
136
                         yield break; // Break out of the
137
                             loop if the request is successful
                     }
138
                     else
139
                     {
140
                          // Handle the error if the request
141
                             fails
                          Debug.Log("Error fetching data.
142
                             Retrying...");
                          retryCount++;
143
                          yield return new
144
                             WaitForSeconds(requestDelay);
                     }
145
146
                     request.Dispose();
147
                }
148
149
```

```
// Maximum retry count reached, handle the
150
                    error
                Debug.Log("Max retry count reached. Unable
151
                    to fetch data.");
152
                 StopCoroutine(AnimateLoadingText());
153
154
                 GameObject panelObject =
155
                    GameObject.Find("PanelColor");
                 if(panelObject != null)
156
                 {
157
                     Color CloseColor;
158
                     ColorUtility.TryParseHtmlString("#931100",
159
                        out CloseColor);
                     panelObject.GetComponent<Image>().color
160
                        = CloseColor;
161
                     loadingText.text = "Restart the app";
162
163
                }
164
165
            }
166
167
168
            private string[] ExtractDictionaryValues<TKey,</pre>
169
               TValue>(Dictionary<TKey, TValue> dictionary)
            {
170
                 string[] values = new
171
                    string[dictionary.Values.Count];
                 int index = 0;
172
173
                 foreach (TValue value in dictionary.Values)
174
                 {
175
                     values[index] = value.ToString();
176
                     index++;
177
                 }
178
179
                return values;
180
            }
181
182
            private void ShowInternetConnectionMessage()
183
            {
184
                 // Display a message indicating that the
185
                    internet connection must be activated
                Debug.Log("Please activate the internet
186
                    connection to fetch resources.");
```

```
}
187
188
             private void LoadNextScene()
189
             {
190
                  // Load the next scene
191
                  SceneManager.LoadScene("Menu");
192
             }
193
194
             private IEnumerator AnimateLoadingText()
195
             {
196
                  int dotCount = 0;
197
198
                  while (true)
199
                  {
200
                       string dots = new string('.', dotCount %
201
                          4);
202
                       if (loadingText != null)
203
                       {
204
                            loadingText.text = "Loading" + dots;
205
                       }
206
207
                       yield return new
208
                          WaitForSeconds(dotInterval);
209
                       dotCount++;
210
                  }
211
             }
212
213
        }
214
```

Listing C.4: swipeRotate.cs script - Based on the number of Input . touchCount and relative position goes to zoom or rotate the model.

```
using UnityEngine;
1
2
  public class swipeRotate : MonoBehaviour
3
  {
4
\mathbf{5}
       public Camera Camera;
6
7
       public float rotateSeedMoifier = 0.2f;
8
       public float perspectiveZoomSpeed = .05f;
9
       public float minFoV = 20.0f;
10
       public float maxFoV = 60.0f;
11
12
       private Touch touch;
13
       private Vector2 touchPosition;
14
       private Quaternion rotationY;
15
16
17
       // Update is called once per frame
18
       void Update()
19
       ſ
20
21
           111
                    ROTATION
22
           if(Input.touchCount ==1)
23
           {
24
                touch = Input.GetTouch(0);
25
                // Control if object is touched
26
                Ray ray =
27
                   Camera.ScreenPointToRay(Input.touches[0].position);
                RaycastHit hit;
28
                if(Physics.Raycast(ray, out hit))
29
                {
30
                     if(hit.collider != null && touch.phase
31
                        == TouchPhase.Moved)
                    {
32
                         rotationY =
33
                            Quaternion.Euler(touch.deltaPosition.y
                            * rotateSeedMoifier,
                            touch.deltaPosition.x *
                            rotateSeedMoifier, Of);
                         transform.rotation = rotationY *
34
                            transform.rotation;
                    }
35
                }
36
           }
37
```

```
38
           111
                    ZOOM
39
40
           if (Input.touchCount >= 2)
41
           {
42
                Touch touchZero = Input.GetTouch(0);
43
                Touch touchOne = Input.GetTouch(1);
44
45
                Vector2 touchZeroPrevPos =
46
                   touchZero.position -
                   touchZero.deltaPosition;
                Vector2 touchOnePrevPos = touchOne.position
47
                   - touchOne.deltaPosition;
48
                // Control if object is touched
49
                Ray ray =
50
                   Camera.ScreenPointToRay(Input.touches[0].position);
                RaycastHit hit;
51
                if(Physics.Raycast(ray, out hit))
52
                {
53
                    if(hit.collider != null)
54
                    {
55
                         float prevTouchDeltaMag =
56
                            (touchZeroPrevPos -
                            touchOnePrevPos).magnitude;
                         float touchDeltaMag =
57
                            (touchZero.position -
                            touchOne.position).magnitude;
58
                         float deltaMagnitudediff =
59
                            prevTouchDeltaMag - touchDeltaMag;
                         Camera.fieldOfView +=
60
                            deltaMagnitudediff *
                            perspectiveZoomSpeed;
                         Camera.fieldOfView =
61
                            Mathf.Clamp(Camera.fieldOfView,
                            minFoV, maxFoV);
                    }
62
                }
63
           }
64
65
       }
66
  }
67
```

Listing C.5: VariableControl.cs script

```
using System.IO;
1
  using System.Collections;
2
  using System.Collections.Generic;
3
  using UnityEngine;
4
  using UnityEngine.UI;
\mathbf{5}
  using UnityEngine.Networking;
6
  using UnityEngine.SceneManagement;
7
  using Newtonsoft.Json;
8
  public class VariableControl : MonoBehaviour
10
  {
11
       public static VariableControl Instance;
12
       public bool state;
                                           // new variable
13
          declared
       public int count;
14
       public string lang;
15
       public string functionality;
16
17
       private string driveURL =
18
          "https://drive.google.com/uc?export=download&id=";
       private int currentIndex;
19
       private string folderPath;
20
       private string jsonData;
21
       private List<string> videoDownloadLinks;
22
23
       private void Awake()
^{24}
       {
25
           // start of new code
26
           if
              (Instance != null)
27
           {
28
                Destroy(gameObject);
29
                return;
30
           }
31
           // end of new code
32
33
           Instance = this;
34
35
           // Load the JSON data from Resources
36
           jsonData =
37
               Resources.Load<TextAsset>("video").text;
38
           DontDestroyOnLoad(gameObject);
39
       }
40
41
       private void Start()
42
```

```
{
43
           state = false;
44
           count = 0;
45
       }
46
47
       public void UgradeState(bool newstate)
48
       ſ
49
           state = newstate;
50
           count += 1;
51
       }
52
53
       public void UpdateFunctionality(string
54
          FunctionalityName)
       ſ
55
           functionality = FunctionalityName;
56
       }
57
58
       // The CreateFolderVideo method creates a folder to
59
          store videos
       // based on the specified language (lang) and
60
          functionality.
       public void CreateFolderVideo()
61
       ſ
62
           currentIndex = 0;
63
64
           // Set the folder path for storing the video
65
           folderPath = Path.Combine(Application.platform ==
66
                RuntimePlatform.Android ||
67
                   Application.platform ==
                RuntimePlatform. IPhonePlayer ?
68
                Application.persistentDataPath :
69
                   Application.dataPath,
                "video", lang);
70
71
           // Create the folder path if it doesn't exist
72
           if (!Directory.Exists(folderPath))
73
           {
74
                Directory.CreateDirectory(folderPath);
75
           }
76
77
           //video
78
79
           // Read the desired filename from the JSON data
80
              based on functionality
           string videos = JsonParser.ReadJson(jsonData,
81
              lang);
```

```
82
            Dictionary<string, string> videoDict =
83
               JsonConvert.DeserializeObject<Dictionary<string,</pre>
               string>>(videos);
84
            // Retrieve all values from the dictionary
85
            videoDownloadLinks = new
86
               List<string>(videoDict.Values);
87
            DownloadNextVideo();
88
       }
89
90
91
       private void DownloadNextVideo()
92
       ł
93
            if (currentIndex >= videoDownloadLinks.Count)
94
            {
95
                Debug.Log("All videos downloaded!");
96
                return;
97
            }
98
99
100
            string videoPath = Path.Combine(folderPath,
101
               currentIndex.ToString() + ".mp4");
102
            if (File.Exists(videoPath))
103
            ſ
104
                Debug.Log("Video already exists: " +
105
                    videoPath);
                currentIndex++;
106
                DownloadNextVideo();
107
            }
108
            else
109
            {
110
                 StartCoroutine(DownloadVideo(videoDownloadLinks[currentIn
111
                    currentIndex));
                currentIndex++;
112
            }
113
       }
114
115
       // It handles the download of videos from specified
116
          download links. It // checks if the video already
          exists locally and downloads it only if //
          necessary. The video download process is
          asynchronous and includes
       // error handling.
117
```

```
private IEnumerator DownloadVideo(string
118
          downloadLink, int ind)
       {
119
            downloadLink = driveURL + downloadLink;
120
121
            UnityWebRequest request =
122
               UnityWebRequest.Get(downloadLink);
123
            yield return request.SendWebRequest();
124
125
            if (request.result ==
126
               UnityWebRequest.Result.Success)
            {
127
                string savePath =
128
                   Path.Combine(folderPath, ind.ToString()+".mp4");
                    // Specify the desired save path for the
                   video
129
                System.IO.File.WriteAllBytes(savePath,
130
                   request.downloadHandler.data);
131
                Debug.Log("Video downloaded successfully: "
132
                   + downloadLink);
133
                // Proceed to the next download
134
                DownloadNextVideo();
135
            }
136
            else
137
            {
138
                Debug.LogError("Video download failed: " +
139
                   downloadLink + "\nError: " +
                   request.error);
            }
140
       }
141
  }
142
```

Listing C.6: Room.cs script - Create a class for each room with the proprety indicates inside the code.

```
using System;
1
  using System.IO;
2
  using UnityEngine;
3
  using UnityEngine.UI;
4
\mathbf{5}
  namespace Assets.Scripts.PathMuseum
6
  {
\overline{7}
            [Serializable]
8
            public class Room
9
            {
10
                     public string Name; // name of room
11
                     public string Path; // path of belonging
12
13
                     public Sprite ImageButton;
14
                public Sprite ImageHButton;
15
                public Texture Plant;
16
                public Material Material;
17
                     public string Description; // text
18
                        description or ID file
19
                     public GameObject Button; // Button
20
                        associated
                     public bool status;
                                                   // IsSelected
^{21}
            }
22
  }
^{23}
```

Listing C.7: MyVideoPlay.cs script - Manages videos within the application. Allows increasing or decreasing playback speed and time. Also allows full-screen or reduced viewing.

```
using System;
1
  using System.IO;
2
  using System.Collections;
3
  using System.Collections.Generic;
4
  using UnityEngine;
\mathbf{5}
  using UnityEngine.Video;
  using UnityEngine.UI;
7
  using UnityEngine.SceneManagement;
8
  using Assets.Scripts.ToggleScript;
9
10
  namespace Assets.Scripts
11
  ł
12
       public class MyVideoPlay : MonoBehaviour
13
       {
14
           [Header("Settings")]
15
           public SetVideoUrl videoPlayerController; //
16
              Reference to a video player controller script
17
           // Various private variables to store references
18
              to UI elements and control video playback
           private VideoPlayer videoPlayer;
19
           private Canvas Canvas;
20
           private GameObject contentPanel;
21
           private GameObject RowImage;
22
           private GameObject cinemaPlane;
23
           private GameObject progressBar;
24
           private GameObject MenuVideo;
25
           private GameObject btnFirstPlay;
26
           private GameObject btnPlay;
27
           private GameObject btnPause;
28
           private GameObject btnFScreen;
29
           private GameObject txtVelocity;
30
           private GameObject btnVelocityP;
31
           private GameObject btnVelocityM;
32
           private GameObject btnPlus;
33
           private GameObject btnMinus;
34
           private GameObject txtTime;
35
36
           // Flags and variables for managing video
37
              playback and UI
           private bool videoIsPlaying = false;
38
           private bool videoIsFirstPlaying = false;
39
           public bool fullIsClicked = false;
40
```

```
private bool videoMenu = false;
41
           private float levelVelocity = 1f;
42
           private float scale;
43
           public int indexVideo;
44
           private DeviceOrientation previousOrientation;
45
           private ScreenOrientation
46
              previousScreenOrientation;
           public int indexMax;
47
           private Sprite spriteFull;
48
           private Sprite spriteReduce;
49
50
           private void Awake()
51
           {
52
                // Load sprite resources for full-screen and
53
                   reduce-screen buttons
                spriteFull =
54
                  Resources.Load<Sprite>(Path.Combine("VideoSprite",
                   "full"));
                spriteReduce =
55
                   Resources.Load<Sprite>(Path.Combine("VideoSprite",
                   "reduce"));
           }
56
57
           void Start()
58
           {
59
               previousOrientation =
60
                   DeviceOrientation.LandscapeLeft;
61
                // Initialize video components and configure
62
                   initial video settings
                InitializeVideoComponents();
63
64
                // Determine the current scene and adjust
65
                  the video index accordingly
                if (SceneManager.GetActiveScene().name ==
66
                   "Scene 2" ||
                   SceneManager.GetActiveScene().name ==
                   "Scene 2a")
                {
67
                    indexVideo =
68
                       this.transform.parent.GetComponent<ManageToogles>()
               }
69
70
                ChangeVideoIndex();
71
                StartWhenUWant();
72
               MenuVideo.SetActive(false);
73
```

```
74
                // Add a click listener to the first play
75
                   button
                Button BtnFPlay =
76
                   btnFirstPlay.GetComponent <Button >();
                BtnFPlay.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
77
                   videoIsPlaying = true; BtnPlayVideo(); if
                   (videoIsFirstPlaying == false) {
                   AddListenerAtAllButtonsVideo();
                   videoIsFirstPlaying = true; }
                   btnFirstPlay.SetActive(false);
                   HideFullScreen(fullIsClicked = true,
                   previousOrientation); });
           }
78
79
           // Method to change the video index
80
           public void ChangeVideoIndex()
81
           {
82
                videoPlayerController.SetVideoByIndex(indexVideo);
83
           }
84
85
           void Update()
86
           ſ
87
                float progressBarWidth =
88
                   RowImage.GetComponent <RectTransform >().rect.width;
89
                // Calculate and display video time progress
90
                int minutes =
91
                   Mathf.FloorToInt((float)videoPlayer.time
                   / 60F);
                int seconds =
92
                   Mathf.FloorToInt((float)videoPlayer.time
                   - minutes * 60);
93
                float lengthy = (float)videoPlayer.length;
^{94}
                int minutes tot =
95
                   Mathf.FloorToInt((float)lengthy / 60F);
                int seconds tot =
96
                   Mathf.FloorToInt((float)lengthy -
                   minutes_tot * 60);
97
                string niceTime = string.Format("
98
                   {0:0}:{1:00} /{2:0}:{3:00}", minutes,
                   seconds, minutes_tot, seconds_tot);
                txtTime.GetComponent <Text>().text = niceTime;
99
100
```

101	<pre>// Update the progress bar based on video frame count</pre>
102	if (videoIsPlaying == true &&
	videoPlayer.frameCount > 0)
103	{
104	float progress =
	(float)videoPlayer.frame /
	<pre>(float)videoPlayer.frameCount;</pre>
105	progressBar.transform.localScale = new
	<pre>Vector3(progressBarWidth * progress,</pre>
	<pre>progressBar.transform.localScale.y,</pre>
	0);
106	}
107	
108	if (videoIsPlaying == false &&
	videoPlayer.frameCount > 0)
109	{
110	float progress =
	(float)videoPlayer.frame /
	<pre>(float)videoPlayer.frameCount;</pre>
111	progressBar.transform.localScale = new
	<pre>Vector3(progressBarWidth * progress,</pre>
	progressBar.transform.localScale.y,
	0);
112	}
113	// Detect changes in denies enietation
114	// Detect changes in device orientation
115	In (previousorrentation)
110	Input.deviceorrentation)
115	if (videoIsPlaving == false kk
117	videoIsFirstPlaying == true)
110	{
110	if (Input deviceOrientation ==
119	DeviceOrientation LandscapeLeft)
120	{
121	previousOrientation =
	Input.deviceOrientation:
122	}
123	<pre>else if (Input.deviceOrientation ==</pre>
	DeviceOrientation.LandscapeRight)
124	{
125	previousOrientation =
	Input.deviceOrientation;
126	}
127	<pre>bool fullIsClickedMask = true;</pre>

128 if (fullIsClicked == 129fullIsClickedMask) { 130 HideFullScreen(fullIsClickedMask, 131 previousOrientation); } 132133 StartCoroutine(Temporary()); 134135 previousOrientation = 136Input.deviceOrientation; } 137 } 138 139 // Detect when the video has finished playing 140 if (videoPlayer.frame == 141 (long)videoPlayer.frameCount - 1) { 142VideoStop(); 143144fullIsClicked = false; 145146HideFullScreen(fullIsClicked, 147 previousOrientation); StartWhenUWant(); 148 149Button BtnFPlay = 150 btnFirstPlay.GetComponent <Button >(); btnFirstPlay.SetActive(true); 151MenuVideo.SetActive(false); 152BtnFPlay.onClick.AddListener(delegate { 153videoIsPlaying = true; BtnPlayVideo(); if (videoIsFirstPlaying == false) { AddListenerAtAllButtonsVideo(); videoIsFirstPlaying = true; } btnFirstPlay.SetActive(false); HideFullScreen(fullIsClicked = true, previousOrientation); }); // Video has finished playing! 154} 155} 156157// Method to set up initial conditions for video 158playback

```
void StartWhenUWant()
159
            {
160
                if (indexMax != 0)
161
                 {
162
                     this.GetComponent<RectTransform>().sizeDelta
163
                        = new Vector2(580, 324 * 580 / 594);
                }
164
165
                cinemaPlane.SetActive(false);
166
                MenuVideo.SetActive(false);
167
                btnPause.SetActive(false);
168
                btnPlay.SetActive(true);
169
                videoPlayer.frame = (long)0;
170
171
                levelVelocity = (float)1;
172
                videoPlayer.playbackSpeed = levelVelocity;
173
                string niceTime = string.Format(" {0:0.00}",
174
                    levelVelocity);
                txtVelocity.GetComponent <Text>().text =
175
                    niceTime;
                 this.transform.SetSiblingIndex(indexVideo +
176
                    1);
177
                StartCoroutine(PlayStart());
178
            }
179
180
            // Method to initialize video components and UI
181
               elements
            void InitializeVideoComponents()
182
            {
183
                Canvas =
184
                    transform.root.GetComponent <Canvas >();
                videoPlayer = GetComponent < VideoPlayer >();
185
                 contentPanel =
186
                    GameObject.Find("BottomPanel").transform.GetChild(0).ga
187
                RowImage =
188
                    this.transform.GetChild(0).gameObject;
                progressBar =
189
                    RowImage.transform.GetChild(0).gameObject;
                MenuVideo =
190
                   RowImage.transform.GetChild(1).gameObject;
191
                btnPlay =
192
                   MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(0).gameObject;
```

193	btnPause =
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(1).gameObject;</pre>
194	btnFScreen =
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(2).gameObject;</pre>
195	<pre>txtVelocity =</pre>
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(3).gameObject;</pre>
196	<pre>btnVelocityP =</pre>
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(4).gameObject;</pre>
197	<pre>btnVelocityM =</pre>
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(5).gameObject;</pre>
198	btnPlus =
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(6).gameObject;</pre>
199	btnMinus =
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(7).gameObject;</pre>
200	txtTime =
	<pre>MenuVideo.transform.GetChild(8).gameObject;</pre>
201	
202	<pre>btnFirstPlay =</pre>
	<pre>this.transform.GetChild(1).gameObject;</pre>
203	
204	cinemaPlane =
	GameObject.Find("PanelFullVideo").gameObject;
205	}
206	
207	<pre>// Method to add listeners to UI buttons for</pre>
	video control
208	<pre>void AddListenerAtAllButtonsVideo()</pre>
209	{
210	Button BtnV =
	videoPlayer.GetComponent <button>();</button>
211	<pre>BtnV.onClick.AddListener(delegate {</pre>
	<pre>MenuHide(); });</pre>
212	
213	Button BVc =
	<pre>btnVelocityP.GetComponent<button>();</button></pre>
214	BVc.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
	ChangeVelocityUp(); });
215	
216	Button BVD =
	<pre>btnVelocityM.GetComponent<button>();</button></pre>
217	BVD.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
	ChangeVelocityDown(); });
218	
219	<pre>Button BtnP = btnPlay.GetComponent<button>();</button></pre>
220	BtnP.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
	BtnPlayVideo();

221	
222	Button BtnPe =
	<pre>btnPause.GetComponent<button>();</button></pre>
223	<pre>BtnPe.onClick.AddListener(delegate {</pre>
	<pre>BtnPlayVideo(); });</pre>
224	
225	Button FScr =
	<pre>btnFScreen.GetComponent<button>():</button></pre>
226	FScr.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
	fullIsClicked = !fullIsClicked:
	HideFullScreen(fullIsClicked
	nreviousOrientation): }):
007	previousorrentation), j),
227	$P_{utton} A_{un} = htp P_{un} CotComponent (P_{utton})$
228	August and a set of the set of th
229	AVN. ONCLICK. AddListener (delegate {
	<pre>incrementlimelen(); });</pre>
230	
231	Button Ind = btnMinus.GetComponent <button>();</button>
232	Ind.onClick.AddListener(delegate {
	<pre>DecreaseTimeTen(); });</pre>
233	}
234	
235	<pre>// Method to increment video playback time by 10</pre>
	seconds
236	<pre>void IncrementTimeTen()</pre>
237	{
238	<pre>videoPlayer.time = videoPlayer.time += 10.0;</pre>
239	
240	<pre>float progress = (float)videoPlayer.frame /</pre>
	<pre>(float)videoPlayer.frameCount;</pre>
241	
242	<pre>if (videoPlayer.frame ==</pre>
	(long)videoPlaver.frameCount - 1)
243	{
244	VideoStop():
245	}
246	}
247	5
241	// Coroutine to wait for a brief time
248	private IEnumerator Temperary()
249	t bringed remainergrot temborary()
250	u viold roturn new WaitEarGasands (10f).
251	yreid recurn new waltrorSeconds(IUI);
252	ſ
253	
254	<pre>// Method to decrement video playback time by 10 seconds</pre>

```
void DecreaseTimeTen()
255
             {
256
                 videoPlayer.time = videoPlayer.time -= 10.0;
257
             }
258
259
             // Method to toggle the video menu visibility
260
             void MenuHide()
261
             {
262
                 videoMenu = !videoMenu;
263
264
                 if (videoMenu == true)
265
                 {
266
                      StartCoroutine(TimingMenuHide());
267
                 }
268
                 else
269
                 {
270
                      MenuVideo.SetActive(false);
271
                 }
272
             }
273
274
             // Coroutine to hide the video menu after a delay
275
             private IEnumerator TimingMenuHide()
276
             ſ
277
                 MenuVideo.SetActive(true);
278
                 yield return new WaitForSeconds(10f);
279
                 MenuVideo.SetActive(false);
280
             }
281
282
             // Coroutine to manage video playback at start
283
             private IEnumerator PlayStart()
284
             {
285
                 VideoPlay();
286
287
                 yield return new WaitForSeconds(0.01f);
288
289
                 VideoStop();
290
             }
291
292
             // Method to handle the play/pause button click
293
             private void BtnPlayVideo()
294
             {
295
                 if (videoIsPlaying)
296
                 {
297
                      VideoPlay();
298
                 }
299
                 else
300
```

```
{
301
                      VideoStop();
302
                 }
303
                 videoIsPlaying = !videoIsPlaying;
304
            }
305
306
            // Method to pause the video
307
            private void VideoStop()
308
            {
309
                 videoPlayer.Pause();
310
                 btnPause.SetActive(true);
311
                 btnPlay.SetActive(false);
312
            }
313
314
            // Method to play the video
315
            private void VideoPlay()
316
            {
317
                 videoPlayer.Play();
318
                 btnPause.SetActive(false);
319
                 btnPlay.SetActive(true);
320
            }
321
322
            // Method to hide/show the video in full-screen
323
               mode
            private void HideFullScreen(bool fullIsClicked,
324
               DeviceOrientation previousOrientation)
            {
325
                    (fullIsClicked == true)
                 if
326
                 {
327
                      int rotationVideo = -90;
328
329
                      if (previousOrientation ==
330
                         DeviceOrientation.LandscapeRight)
                      {
331
                          rotationVideo = 90;
332
                     }
333
334
                     float h =
335
                         Canvas.GetComponent<RectTransform>().rect.height;
                      float l =
336
                         Canvas.GetComponent<RectTransform>().rect.width;
337
                     cinemaPlane.SetActive(true);
338
                      scale = Math.Min(1 / 108, h / 198);
339
                      this.GetComponent <RectTransform >().SetParent(cinemaPl
340
                         false);
```

341	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().rotation = Quaternion.Euler(0, 0,</recttransform></pre>
	rotationVideo);
342	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().anchorMin = new Vector2(0.5f, 0.5f);</recttransform></pre>
343	this.GetComponent <recttransform>().anchorMax = new Vector2(0.5f 0.5f):</recttransform>
344	this.GetComponent <recttransform>().localPosition</recttransform>
345	this.GetComponent <recttransform>().localScale</recttransform>
	= new Vector3((scale / 3) - 0.1f, (scale / 3) - 0.1f, (scale / 3) - 0.1f);
346	<pre>btnFScreen.GetComponent < Image > ().sprite</pre>
347	}
348	else
349	{
350	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().SetParent(contentP false):</recttransform></pre>
351	<pre>cinemaPlane.SetActive(false);</pre>
352	
353	if (indexMax != 0)
354	{
355	scale = (float)580 / 594;
356	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().sizeDelta = new Vector2(580, 324 * scale);</recttransform></pre>
357	<pre>this.transform.SetSiblingIndex(indexVideo + 1);</pre>
358	}
359	
360	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().anchorMin = new Vector2(0f, 1f):</recttransform></pre>
361	this.GetComponent <recttransform>().anchorMax</recttransform>
362	this.GetComponent <recttransform>().rotation</recttransform>
363	<pre>= Quaternion.Euler(0, 0, 0); this.GetComponent<recttransform>().localScale = new Vector3(1, 1, 1);</recttransform></pre>
364	
365	<pre>if (indexMax == 0)</pre>
366	{
367	<pre>this.GetComponent<recttransform>().anchoredPositi</recttransform></pre>
368	}

```
btnFScreen.GetComponent < Image > ().sprite
369
                        = spriteFull;
                 }
370
            }
371
372
            // Method to increase video playback speed
373
            private void ChangeVelocityUp()
374
            {
375
                 levelVelocity += 0.1f;
376
                 if (levelVelocity > 1.5f)
377
                 {
378
                     levelVelocity = 1.5f;
379
                 }
380
381
                 videoPlayer.playbackSpeed = levelVelocity;
382
                 string niceTime = string.Format(" {0:0.00}",
383
                    (float)levelVelocity);
                 txtVelocity.GetComponent<Text>().text =
384
                    niceTime;
            }
385
386
            // Method to decrease video playback speed
387
            private void ChangeVelocityDown()
388
            ſ
389
                 levelVelocity -= 0.1f;
390
                 if (levelVelocity < 0.5f)</pre>
391
                 {
392
                     levelVelocity = 0.5f;
393
                 }
394
395
                 videoPlayer.playbackSpeed = levelVelocity;
396
                 string niceTime = string.Format(" {0:0.00}",
397
                    (float)levelVelocity);
                 txtVelocity.GetComponent<Text>().text =
398
                    niceTime;
            }
399
400
            // Method to change the index of the video being
401
               played
            public void ChangeIndexVideo()
402
            {
403
                 indexVideo =
404
                    this.transform.parent.GetComponent<ManageToogles>().cu
                 ChangeVideoIndex();
405
                 this.transform.SetSiblingIndex(indexVideo +
406
                    1);
```

Listing C.8: ImageTracking.cs script - Allows one-to-one correspondence between traced image and corresponding prefab. The prefab can be of any type from a panel containing information to a 3D object

```
1
  using System.Collections;
2
  using System.Collections.Generic;
3
  using UnityEngine;
4
  using UnityEngine.XR;
5
  using UnityEngine.XR.ARFoundation;
6
  using UnityEngine.XR.ARSubsystems;
7
  [RequireComponent(typeof(ARTrackedImageManager))]
9
  public class ImageTracking: MonoBehaviour
10
  {
11
       [SerializeField]
12
       private GameObject[] placeablePrefabs;
13
14
       private Dictionary<string, GameObject>
15
          spawnedPrefabs = new Dictionary<string,</pre>
          GameObject>();
       private ARTrackedImageManager trackedImageManager;
16
17
       private void Awake()
18
       {
19
           trackedImageManager =
20
              FindObjectOfType < ARTrackedImageManager > ();
           foreach(GameObject prefab in placeablePrefabs)
21
           {
22
               GameObject newPrefab = Instantiate(prefab,
23
                  Vector3.zero, Quaternion.identity);
24
               newPrefab.name = prefab.name;
25
                // personalized transform of GameObject
26
                  (newPrefab.name == "HBim")
                if
27
               {
28
29
                    newPrefab.transform.localScale = new
30
                       Vector3(0.02f, 0.02f, 0.02f);
                    newPrefab.transform.localRotation =
31
                       Quaternion.Euler(-90, 0, 90);
```

```
//newPrefab.transform.localPosition =
32
                        Quaternion.Euler(0, 0, 1);
                }
33
                else if(newPrefab.name == "Gio")
34
                {
35
                     newPrefab.transform.localScale = new
36
                        Vector3(0.05f, 0.05f, 0.05f);
                }
37
                spawnedPrefabs.Add(prefab.name, newPrefab);
38
                spawnedPrefabs[prefab.name].SetActive(false);
39
           }
40
       }
41
42
       private void OnEnable()
43
       ł
44
            trackedImageManager.trackedImagesChanged +=
45
               ImageChanged;
       }
46
47
       private void OnDisable()
48
       ł
49
            trackedImageManager.trackedImagesChanged -=
50
               ImageChanged;
       }
51
52
       private void ImageChanged
53
          (ARTrackedImagesChangedEventArgs eventArgs)
       {
54
            foreach(ARTrackedImage trackedImage in
55
               eventArgs.added)
            {
56
                UpdateImage(trackedImage);
57
            }
58
59
            foreach (ARTrackedImage trackedImage in
60
               eventArgs.updated)
            {
61
                UpdateImage(trackedImage);
62
           }
63
64
            foreach (ARTrackedImage trackedImage in
65
               eventArgs.removed)
            {
66
                spawnedPrefabs[trackedImage.name].SetActive(false);
67
           }
68
       }
69
```

70

```
private void UpdateImage(ARTrackedImage trackedImage)
71
       {
72
            // move GameObject following image position
73
            string name = trackedImage.referenceImage.name;
74
            Vector3 position =
75
               trackedImage.transform.position;
            GameObject prefab = spawnedPrefabs[name];
76
            prefab.transform.position = position;
77
            prefab.SetActive(true);
78
79
            foreach(GameObject go in spawnedPrefabs.Values)
80
            {
81
                if(go.name != name)
82
                {
83
                     go.SetActive(false);
84
                }
85
86
            }
87
88
            if (trackedImage.trackingState ==
89
               TrackingState.None)
            {
90
                foreach(GameObject go in
91
                   spawnedPrefabs.Values)
                {
92
                     go.SetActive(false);
93
                }
^{94}
            }
95
96
97
       }
98
  }
99
```

Bibliography

- James Meyer. What Happened to the Institutional Critique? Reprinted in Peter Weibel, ed., Kontext Kunst (Cologne: Dumont, 1993), 239-256. New York: American Fine Arts, Co. and Paula Cooper Gallery, 1993 (cit. on pp. 1–3).
- Benjamin Buchloh. «Conceptual Art 1962–1969: From the Aesthetics of Administration to the Critique of Institutions». In: October 55 (1999), pp. 105–143 (cit. on pp. 1–3).
- Julia Bryan-Wilson. «A Curriculum of Institutional Critique». In: New Institutionalism. Ed. by Jonas Ekeberg. Oslo: OCA/verksted, 2003, pp. 89–109 (cit. on pp. 1–3).
- [4] Thomas Edlinger. Der wunde Punkt. Vom Unbehagen an der Kritik. Frankfurt: Suhrkamp, 2015 (cit. on pp. 1–3).
- [5] Institutional Critique : an anthology of artists' writings / edited by Alexander Alberro and Blake Stimson. eng. Cambridge, Mass.: MIT Press, 2009. ISBN: 9780262013161 (cit. on pp. 1–3).
- [6] 1965-1975: Reconsidering the Object of Art MOCA. https://www.moca.or g/exhibition/1965-1975-reconsidering-the-object-of-art. (Accessed on 05/27/2023) (cit. on pp. 1-3).
- [7] P.J. Schneemann. Frame as Medium as Presence: Historical and Conceptual Perspectives on the Kunsthalle Bern as a Model. Schriften von Peter J. Schneemann. Universitätsbibliothek Heidelberg, 2019. URL: https://books.google. it/books?id=US01zQEACAAJ (cit. on pp. 1-3).
- [8] Thomas Cugini. Christo and Jeanne-Claude: Wrapped Kunsthalle, Bern. artnet.com. n.d. URL: %7Bhttps://www.artnet.com/artists/thomas-cugini/ christo-and-jeanne-claude-wrapped-kunsthalle-bern-w9RHUnhPrl2xR AulmKvfiA2%7D (cit. on p. 2).
- [9] Frazer Ward. «The Haunted Museum: Institutional Critique and Publicity». In: October 73 (1995), pp. 71-89. ISSN: 01622870, 1536013X. URL: http: //www.jstor.org/stable/779009 (visited on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 2).
- [10] International Council of Museums (ICOM). History of ICOM. URL: https: //icom.museum/en/about-us/history-of-icom/ (visited on 05/20/2023) (cit. on pp. 2-4).
- [11] Museums, Ethics and Cultural Heritage Google Books. https://www.google. it/books/edition/Museums_Ethics_and_Cultural_Heritage/aJOkDAAAQ BAJ?hl=it&gbpv=1&dq=International+Council+of+Museums+(ICOM)+in+ 1946&pg=PA39&printsec=frontcover. (Accessed on 05/28/2023) (cit. on p. 2).
- [12] How 1,280 Artworks Stolen by the Nazis were Hidden in a Munich Apartment Until 2012 / Vanity Fair. https://www.vanityfair.com/news/2014/04/ degenerate-art-cornelius-gurlitt-munich-apartment. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 2).
- [13] Barbara Lovrinic. «[Book Review] Cultural Diplomacy: Arts, Festivals and Geopolitics; Milena Dragićević Šešić, with Ljiljana Rogač Mijatović and Nina Mihaljinac (Ed.)» In: Croatian International Relations Review 24 (June 2018) (cit. on p. 3).
- [14] Tuuli Lähdesmäki and Viktorija L. A. Čeginskas. «Conceptualisation of heritage diplomacy in scholarship». In: International Journal of Heritage Studies 28.5 (2022), pp. 635–650. DOI: 10.1080/13527258.2022.2054846.
 eprint: https://doi.org/10.1080/13527258.2022.2054846. URL: https: //doi.org/10.1080/13527258.2022.2054846 (cit. on p. 3).
- [15] Museum Definition International Council of Museums icom.museum. https://icom.museum/en/resources/standards-guidelines/museumdefinition/. [Accessed 14-Feb-2023] (cit. on pp. 4, 107).
- [16] The Neurodiverse Museum. The Neurodiverse Museum. URL: https://thene urodiversemuseum.org.uk/ (visited on 05/20/2023) (cit. on p. 5).
- [17] Matthew Cock, Molly Bretton, Anna Fineman, Richard France, Claire Madge, and Melanie Sharpe. State of Museum Access 2018 Does your museum website welcome and inform disabled visitors? Sept. 2018 (cit. on p. 5).
- [18] accessibilita-luoghi-cultura-dic2022.pdf. https://www.istat.it/it/files/ /2022/12/accessibilita-luoghi-cultura-dic2022.pdf. (Accessed on 06/20/2023) (cit. on p. 5).
- [19] Autismo, neurodiversità e neurodivergenza Specialisterne. https://spec ialisterneitalia.com/autismo-neurodiversita-e-neurodivergenza/. (Accessed on 06/20/2023) (cit. on p. 6).
- [20] Da Greta a Kurt Cobaine:l'1% della popolazione ha l'Asperger, ma diagnosi tardive - Il Sole 24 ORE. https://www.ilsole24ore.com/art/da-gretakurt-cobaine-l-1percento-popolazione-ha-l-asperger-ma-diagnositardive-ACUfpdFB. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 6).
- [21] J. H. Falk. «An Identity-Centered Approach to Understanding Museum Learning». In: (2006). DOI: 10.1111/j.2151-6952.2006.tb00209.x (cit. on p. 7).
- [22] J.H. Falk. IDENTITY AND THE MUSEUM VISITOR EXPERIENCE. Left Coast Press, 2012. ISBN: 9781611325263. URL: https://books.google.it/ books?id=Ar7NNZ5hgdsC (cit. on p. 7).

- [23] John H. Falk. «Contextualizing Falk's Identity-Related Visitor Motivation Model». In: Visitor Studies 14.2 (2011), pp. 141–157. DOI: 10.1080/10645578.
 2011.608002. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1080/10645578.2011.608002.
 URL: https://doi.org/10.1080/10645578.2011.608002 (cit. on p. 8).
- [24] Daisy Fancourt and Saoirse Finn. What is the evidence on the role of the arts in improving health and well-being? A scoping review. Health Evidence Network synthesis report;67. World Health Organization. Regional Office for Europe, 2019, ix + 133 p. (Cit. on pp. 8, 9).
- [25] D. Fancourt and S. Finn. What is the evidence on the role of the arts in improving health and well-being? A scoping review. Available from: https: //www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK553773/. Health Evidence Network synthesis report, No. 67. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe, 2019 (cit. on p. 8).
- [26] World Health Organization. Constitution of the World Health Organization. https://www.who.int/about/governance/constitution. (Accessed on 02/18/2023) (cit. on p. 9).
- [27] Olivier Beauchet, Jacqueline Matskiv, Kevin Galery, Linda Goossens, Constance Lafontaine, and Kim Sawchuk. «Benefits of a 3-month cycle of weekly virtual museum tours in community dwelling older adults: Results of a randomized controlled trial». In: *Frontiers in Medicine* 9 (2022). ISSN: 2296-858X. DOI: 10.3389/fmed.2022.969122. URL: https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fmed.2022.969122 (cit. on p. 9).
- [28] Elisabeth Ioannides. «Museums as Therapeutic Environments and the Contribution of Art Therapy». In: *Museum International* 68 (July 2016), pp. 98–109.
 DOI: 10.1111/muse.12125 (cit. on p. 9).
- [29] Janice Lobban and Dominic Murphy. «Military museum collections and art therapy as mental health resources for veterans with PTSD». In: International Journal of Art Therapy 25.4 (2020), pp. 172–182. DOI: 10.1080/17454832.2 020.1845220. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1080/17454832.2020.1845220. URL: https://doi.org/10.1080/17454832.2020.1845220 (cit. on p. 9).
- [30] Sacco P.L. Grossi E. Tavano Blessi G. «Magic Moments: Determinants of Stress Relief and Subjective Wellbeing from Visiting a Cultural Heritage Site».
 In: (). (Accessed on 02/18/2023) (cit. on p. 9).
- [31] Laia Delfa-Lobato, Joan Guàrdia-Olmos, and Maria Feliu-Torruella. «Benefits of Cultural Activities on People With Cognitive Impairment: A Systematic Review». In: Frontiers in Psychology 12 (2021). ISSN: 1664-1078. DOI: 10.3389/fpsyg.2021.762392. URL: https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fpsyg.2021.762392 (cit. on p. 9).
- [32] Enzo Grossi, Pier Luigi Sacco, Giorgio Blessi, and Renata Cerutti. «The Impact of Culture on the Individual Subjective Well-Being of the Italian Population: An Exploratory Study». In: Applied Research in Quality of Life 6 (Dec. 2011), pp. 387–410. DOI: 10.1007/s11482-010-9135-1 (cit. on p. 9).

- [33] Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development / Department of Economic and Social Affairs. https://sdgs.un.org/2030age nda. (Accessed on 02/16/2023). 2015 (cit. on p. 10).
- [34] A. H. McGhie. Museums and the Sustainable Development Goals. http: //www.curatingtomorrow.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/museu ms-and-the-sustainable-development-goals-2019.pdf. (Accessed on 02/16/2023). Aug. 2019 (cit. on p. 10).
- [35] ICD-11 for Mortality and Morbidity Statistics. https://icd.who.int/brow se11/l-m/en#/http://id.who.int/icd/entity/437815624. (Accessed on 02/16/2023) (cit. on p. 11).
- [36] American Psychiatric Association. Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. 5th. Arlington: American Psychiatric Publishing, 2013 (cit. on pp. 11, 12).
- [37] Wikimedia Commons. Autism Spectrum Disorders subcategories. Accessed on Month Day, Year. Wikimedia Foundation. Year. URL: https://commons. wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Autism_Spectrum_Disorders_subcategories. png (cit. on p. 12).
- [38] Katherine Valencia, Cristian Rusu, Daniela Quiñones Otey, and Erick Jamet.
 «The Impact of Technology on People with Autism Spectrum Disorder: A Systematic Literature Review». In: Sensors 19 (Oct. 2019), p. 4485. DOI: 10.3390/s19204485 (cit. on p. 13).
- [39] Erin Soares, Kimberly Bausback, Charlotte Beard, Megan Higinbotham, Eduardo Bunge, and Grace Gengoux. «Social Skills Training for Autism Spectrum Disorder: a Meta-analysis of In-person and Technological Interventions». In: Journal of Technology in Behavioral Science 6 (Mar. 2021). DOI: 10.1007/s41347-020-00177-0 (cit. on p. 13).
- [40] Beihua Zhang, Shan Liang, Jingze Chen, Lin Chen, Weimin Chen, Shunshun Tu, Linyan Hu, Huimin Jin, and Lixi Chu. «Effectiveness of peer-mediated intervention on social skills for children with autism spectrum disorder: a randomized controlled trial». In: *Translational pediatrics* 11 (May 2022), pp. 663–675. DOI: 10.21037/tp-22-110 (cit. on p. 13).
- [41] Fatemeh Golzari, Ghorban Hemati Alamdarloo, and Shahram Moradi. «The Effect of a Social Stories Intervention on the Social Skills of Male Students With Autism Spectrum Disorder». In: SAGE Open 5.4 (2015), p. 2158244015621599. DOI: 10.1177/2158244015621599. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244015621599. URL: https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244015621599 (cit. on p. 13).
- [42] Issa Alkinj, Anabela Pereira, and Paula Santos. «The Effects of an Educational Program Based on Modeling and Social Stories to Improve the Social Skills of Students with Autism». In: SSRN Electronic Journal (Jan. 2022). DOI: 10.2139/ssrn.4011029 (cit. on p. 13).
- [43] Alpaydin Beyza. «The effectiveness of video modelling on social and communication skills: A systematic review.» In: (Dec. 2020) (cit. on p. 13).

- [44] Talal Alhuzimi. «Efficacy of Video Modelling (VM) in Developing Social Skills in Children with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at School in Saudi Arabia». In: International Journal of Disability, Development and Education 69.2 (2022), pp. 550–564. DOI: 10.1080/1034912X.2020.1716962. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1080/1034912X.2020.1716962. URL: https://doi.org/10.1080/1034912X.2020.1716962 (cit. on p. 13).
- [45] Joshua B. Plavnick, Taylor Kaid, and Malcolm C. MacFarland. «Effects of a school-based social skills training program for adolescents with autism spectrum disorder and intellectual disability». In: Journal of Autism and Developmental Disorders 45.9 (2015), pp. 2674–2690. DOI: 10.1007/s10803– 015-2434-5 (cit. on p. 13).
- [46] Kara Hume, R. Loftin, and J. Lantz. «Increasing independence in autism spectrum disorders: A review of three focused interventions». In: Autism and Developmental Disorders 39.9 (2009), pp. 1329–1338 (cit. on p. 13).
- [47] Marion Rutherford, Julie Baxter, Zoe Grayson, Lorna Johnston, and Anne O'Hare. «Visual supports at home and in the community for individuals with autism spectrum disorders: A scoping review». In: Autism 24.2 (2020). PMID: 31451016, pp. 447-469. DOI: 10.1177/1362361319871756. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1177/1362361319871756. URL: https://doi.org/10.1177/1362361319871756 (cit. on p. 13).
- [48] Mari-Anne Sørlie, Kristine Amlund Hagen, and Kristin Berg Nordahl. «Development of social skills during middle childhood: Growth trajectories and school-related predictors». In: International Journal of School & Educational Psychology 9.sup1 (2021), S69–S87. DOI: 10.1080/21683603.2020.1744492. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1080/21683603.2020.1744492. URL: https://doi.org/10.1080/21683603.2020.1744492 (cit. on p. 13).
- [49] «Autism spectrum disorder». In: Nature Reviews Disease Primers 6.1 (Jan. 16, 2020). TY JOUR, p. 6. ISSN: 2056-676X. DOI: 10.1038/s41572-020-0146-4. URL: https://doi.org/10.1038/s41572-020-0146-4 (cit. on p. 14).
- [50] Hidden Figures In Neurodiversity: Judy Singer? https://www.forbes.com/ sites/drnancydoyle/2022/08/26/hidden-figures-in-neurodiversityjudy-singer/. (Accessed on 06/22/2023) (cit. on p. 14).
- [51] Paul Ellis, Amanda Kirby, and Abby Osborne. *Neurodiversity and Education*. Publisher Name, Year (cit. on p. 14).
- [52] Neurodiversity: A Concept Whose Time Has Come. https://www.institu te4learning.com/2010/02/10/neurodiversity-a-concept-whose-timehas-come/. (Accessed on 06/23/2023) (cit. on p. 15).
- [53] On the neurological underpinnings of geekdom The Atlantic. https://www. theatlantic.com/magazine/archive/1998/09/neurodiversity/305909/. (Accessed on 06/23/2023) (cit. on p. 15).

- [54] Ginny Russell. «Critiques of the Neurodiversity Movement». In: Autistic Community and the Neurodiversity Movement: Stories from the Frontline. Ed. by Steven K. Kapp. Singapore: Springer Singapore, 2020, pp. 287–303. ISBN: 978-981-13-8437-0. DOI: 10.1007/978-981-13-8437-0_21. URL: https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-8437-0_21 (cit. on p. 15).
- [55] Why the neurodiversity movement has become harmful / Aeon Essays. https: //aeon.co/essays/why-the-neurodiversity-movement-has-becomeharmful. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 15).
- [56] International Organization for Standardization. Ergonomics of human-system interaction – Part 11: Usability: Definitions and concepts. Geneva, Switzerland, 2018. URL: https://www.iso.org/standard/63500.html (cit. on p. 16).
- [57] Inclusion. Retrieved from https://www.oxfordlearnersdictionaries. com/definition/english/inclusion (cit. on p. 16).
- [58] Libby Hladik et al. «Accessibility and Inclusion for Families with Children with Autism Spectrum Disorders in Cultural Institutions». In: Curator: The Museum Journal 65.2 (2022), pp. 435-449. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1111/ cura.12468. eprint: https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdf/10. 1111/cura.12468. URL: https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10. 1111/cura.12468 (cit. on p. 16).
- [59] Debbie Kinsey, Noreen Orr, Rob Anderson, and Iain Lang. «A conceptual model of the impact of including carers in museum programmes for people with dementia». In: *Dementia* 21.8 (2022). PMID: 36137761, pp. 2584–2600. DOI: 10.1177/14713012221126803. eprint: https://doi.org/10.1177/14713012221126803. URL: https://doi.org/10.1177/14713012221126803 (cit. on p. 16).
- [60] Tiziana Maffei. Accessibility and Museums: Towards an Inclusive Cultural Experience. 2019. URL: https://www.icom-italia.org/wp-content/ uploads/2019/07/TizianaMAFFEI.pdf (cit. on p. 16).
- [61] Musée des beaux-arts de Montréal. Frame for Welcoming Museum Visitors with Autism Spectrum Disorder. 2019. URL: https://www.mbam.qc.ca/ workspace/uploads/files/framework-eng.pdf (cit. on p. 16).
- [62] Carlo Corsato and Kate Devine. «Digital Engagement, Diversity and Access in Museum Education». In: *Filologie medievali e moderne*. Fondazione Università Ca' Foscari, Sept. 2021. DOI: 10.30687/978-88-6969-542-1/005. URL: https://doi.org/10.30687/978-88-6969-542-1/005 (cit. on p. 17).
- [63] Kristina Barekyan and Lisa Peter. Digital learning and education in museums - Innovative approaches and insights. https://www.ne-mo.org/fileadmin/ Dateien/public/Publications/NEMO_Working_Group_LEM_Report_Digi tal_Learning_and_Education_in_Museums_12.2022.pdf. (Accessed on 06/14/2023). Jan. 2023 (cit. on p. 17).
- [64] Rotimi-Williams Bello and Ahmad Sufril Azlan Mohamed. «IMPACT OF TECHNOLOGY ON TRADITIONAL MUSEUM COLLECTION STORAGE AND MANAGEMENT». In: 7 (Nov. 2018), pp. 46–51 (cit. on p. 17).

- [65] Richard Yu-Chang Li, Alan Wee-Chung Liew, and Wen-Poh Su. «The digital museum: Challenges and solution». In: vol. 3. Jan. 2012, pp. 646–649. ISBN: 978-1-4673-1288-2 (cit. on p. 17).
- [66] Maria Shehade and Theopisti Stylianou-Lambert. «Virtual Reality in Museums: Exploring the Experiences of Museum Professionals». In: Applied Sciences 10.11 (2020). ISSN: 2076-3417. DOI: 10.3390/app10114031. URL: https://www.mdpi.com/2076-3417/10/11/4031 (cit. on pp. 17, 107).
- [67] L. Caesar. «Store Tours: Accessing Museums' Stored Collections». In: Papers from the Institute of Archaeology 18.S1 (2007), pp. 3–19. DOI: 10.5334/pia. 286. URL: https://doi.org/10.5334/pia.286 (cit. on p. 17).
- [68] Roberto Vaz, Paula Fernandes, and Ana Veiga. «Interactive Technologies in Museums: How Digital Installations and Media Are Enhancing the Visitors' Experience». In: Jan. 2018, pp. 30–53. DOI: 10.4018/978-1-5225-2927-9.ch002 (cit. on p. 17).
- [69] Moisés Carrasco and Po-Han Chen. «Application of mixed reality for improving architectural design comprehension effectiveness». In: Automation in Construction 126 (June 2021), p. 103677. DOI: 10.1016/j.autcon.2021.103677 (cit. on p. 18).
- [70] Cambridge Dictionary. Virtual Reality. Cambridge Dictionary. [Online]. Available: https://dictionary.cambridge.org/it/dizionario/inglese/ virtual-reality. n.d. (Cit. on p. 18).
- [71] «Augmented Reality». In: *Encyclopedia of Multimedia*. Ed. by Borko Furht. Boston, MA: Springer US, 2006, pp. 29–31. ISBN: 978-0-387-30038-2. DOI: 10.1007/0-387-30038-4_10. URL: https://doi.org/10.1007/0-387-30038-4_10 (cit. on p. 18).
- [72] Arzu Çöltekin, Amy L Griffin, Aidan Slingsby, Anthony C Robinson, Sidonie Christophe, Victoria Rautenbach, Min Chen, Christopher Pettit, and Alexander Klippel. «Geospatial information visualization and extended reality displays». In: *Manual of digital earth* (2020), pp. 229–277 (cit. on p. 18).
- [73] Global Virtual Reality Market Report. The global virtual reality market size was valued at 19.44billionin2022andisprojectedtogrowfrom25.11 billion in 2023 to 165.91billionby2030.. URL: https://www.fortunebusinessinsights.com/industry-reports/virtual-reality-market-101378 (cit. on p. 18).
- [74] Virtual Reality [VR] Market Size, Growth, Share | Report, 2030. https://www. fortunebusinessinsights.com/industry-reports/virtual-realitymarket-101378. (Accessed on 09/06/2023) (cit. on p. 19).
- [75] Virtual Reality's Evolution From Science Fiction to Mainstream Technology. https://nextgeninvent.com/blogs/the-evolution-of-virtual-realit y/. (Accessed on 09/06/2023) (cit. on p. 19).
- [76] A. Osello. Il futuro del disegno con il BIM per ingegneri e architetti. Politecnico di Torino, Flaccovio Dario, 2012 (cit. on p. 21).
- [77] Ireneusz Czmoch and Adam Pękala. «Traditional Design versus BIM Based Design». In: *Proceedia Engineering* 91 (Dec. 2014). DOI: 10.1016/j.proeng. 2014.12.048 (cit. on p. 21).

- [78] Salvatore Gerbino, Luigi Cieri, Carlo Rainieri, and Giovanni Fabbrocino. «On BIM Interoperability via the IFC Standard: An Assessment from the Structural Engineering and Design Viewpoint». In: Applied Sciences 11.23 (2021). ISSN: 2076-3417. DOI: 10.3390/app112311430. URL: https://www.mdpi.com/2076-3417/11/23/11430 (cit. on p. 21).
- [79] Shaohua Jiang, Liping Jiang, Yunwei Han, Zheng Wu, and Na Wang. «Open-BIM: An Enabling Solution for Information Interoperability». In: Applied Sciences 9 (Dec. 2019), p. 5358. DOI: 10.3390/app9245358 (cit. on p. 22).
- [80] What is IFC Industry Foundation Class? buildingSMART Korea. ht tps://www.buildingsmartkorea.org/what-is-ifc-and-open-source. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 22).
- [81] IfcRoot. https://standards.buildingsmart.org/IFC/DEV/IFC4_2/FINAL/ HTML/schema/ifckernel/lexical/ifcroot.htm. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 23).
- [82] IFC file structure (part1): the IfcObjectDefinition BibLus. https://biblus. accasoftware.com/en/ifc-file-structure-the-ifcobjectdefinition/. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 23).
- [83] IFC: un formato comune per tutti i modelli BIM. https://www.descor. com/news-eventi/ifc-un-formato-comune-per-tutti-i-modelli-bim. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 24).
- [84] Marjan Sadeghi. «Information-Augmented Building Information Models (BIM) To Inform Facilities Management (FM) Guidelines». PhD thesis. Apr. 2019 (cit. on p. 24).
- [85] Facundo José López, Pedro M. Lerones, José Llamas, Jaime Gómez-García-Bermejo, and Eduardo Zalama. «A Review of Heritage Building Information Modeling (H-BIM)». In: *Multimodal Technologies and Interaction* 2.2 (2018). ISSN: 2414-4088. DOI: 10.3390/mti2020021. URL: https://www.mdpi.com/2414-4088/2/2/21 (cit. on p. 25).
- [86] S. Antonopoulou and P. Bryan. BIM for Heritage: Developing a Historic Building Information Model. Historic England Guidance Series. Historic England, 2017. ISBN: 9781848024878. URL: https://books.google.it/books? id=3RpdtAEACAAJ (cit. on p. 25).
- [87] Natalie Groetelaars and Edmara Santana. «NORMATIZAÇÃO APLICADA AO HBIM». In: July 2023 (cit. on p. 25).
- [88] Stefano Cursi, Letizia Martinelli, Nicolò Paraciani, Filippo Calcerano, and Elena Gigliarelli. «Linking external knowledge to heritage BIM». In: Automation in Construction 141 (2022), p. 104444. ISSN: 0926-5805. DOI: https://doi. org/10.1016/j.autcon.2022.104444. URL: https://www.sciencedirect. com/science/article/pii/S092658052200317X (cit. on p. 25).
- [89] Filippo Diara and Fulvio Rinaudo. «IFC Classification for FOSS HBIM: Open Issues and a Schema Proposal for Cultural Heritage Assets». In: Applied Sciences 10.23 (2020). ISSN: 2076-3417. DOI: 10.3390/app10238320. URL: https://www.mdpi.com/2076-3417/10/23/8320 (cit. on p. 25).

- [90] Grazia Tucci, Alessandro Conti, Lidia Fiorini, Manuela Corongiu, Noemi Valdambrini, and Carlotta Matta. «M-BIM: a new tool for the Galleria dell'Accademia di Firenze». In: Virtual Archaeology Review 10.21 (July 2019), pp. 40-55. DOI: 10.4995/var.2019.11943. URL: https://polipapers.upv. es/index.php/var/article/view/11943 (cit. on p. 25).
- [91] About Us Cornwall's Regimental Museum. https://bodminkeep.org.uk/ museum-history/about-us/. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 28).
- [92] Sensory-friendly evening Rijksmuseum. https://www.rijksmuseum.nl/ en/whats-on/accessibility/sensory-friendly-evening. (Accessed on 08/29/2023) (cit. on p. 29).
- [93] Dawnosaurs: Relaxed Morning Visit / Natural History Museum. https://www. nhm.ac.uk/events/dawnosaurs.html. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 29).
- [94] Disabled visitors Van Gogh Museum. https://www.vangoghmuseum.nl/ en/about/organisation/disabled-visitors. (Accessed on 06/27/2023) (cit. on p. 30).
- [95] MAKING MUSEUMS INCLUSIVE FOR PEOPLE WITH AUTISM The Dallas Museum of Art, Montreal Museum of Fine Arts and Palais des Beaux-Arts de Lille, with the support of FRAME, have published a digital guide to help the museum community welcome audiences with autism. https://fra memuseums.org/making-museums-inclusive-for-people-with-autismthe-dallas-museum-of-art-montreal-museum-of-fine-arts-andpalais-des-beaux-arts-de-lille-with-the-support-of-frame-havepublished-a-digital-guide/. (Accessed on 09/04/2023) (cit. on p. 31).
- [96] Resources for Visitors on the Autism Spectrum / The Metropolitan Museum of Art. https://www.metmuseum.org/events/programs/access/visitorswith-developmental-and-learning-disabilities/for-visitors-withautism-spectrum-disorders#teens. (Accessed on 09/04/2023) (cit. on p. 31).
- [97] Guggenheim For All / The Guggenheim Museums and Foundation. https: //www.guggenheim.org/event/event_series/guggenheim-for-all. (Accessed on 09/04/2023) (cit. on p. 32).
- [98] InfiniTeach Empowering Autism Inclusion: Solutions for a Neurodiverse World. https://www.infiniteach.com/. (Accessed on 09/04/2023) (cit. on p. 33).
- [99] Nicolò Messina, Vito Matarazzo, Daniele Occhiuto, Mirko Gelsomini, and Franca Garzotto. «Museum for All: Wearable Immersive Virtual Tours in Museums for People with Neurodevelopmental Disorders». In: *IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering* 364 (June 2018), p. 012047. DOI: 10.1088/1757-899X/364/1/012047 (cit. on p. 35).
- [100] Justin Leaf, Julia Ferguson, Joseph Cihon, Christine Milne, Ronald Leaf, and John McEachin. «A Critical Review of Social Narratives». In: Journal of Developmental and Physical Disabilities 32 (Apr. 2020). DOI: 10.1007/s10882-019-09692-2 (cit. on p. 36).

- [101] Narcisa Chirvasiu and Elena Simion. «Alternative and Augmentative Communication in Support of Persons with Language Development Retardation». In: *Revista Romaneasca pentru Educatie Multidimensionala* 10 (July 2018), p. 28.
 DOI: 10.18662/rrem/43 (cit. on p. 36).
- [102] Carter Kits Home. https://carterkits.org/. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 36).
- [103] Chiara Teolato. Carta dei Servizi Palazzo Carignano. http://polomuseale piemonte.beniculturali.it/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Carta-dei-Servizi-Palazzo-Carignano.pdf. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 39).
- [104] John K. Haas. A History of the Unity Game Engine. Tech. rep. Istituto Politecnico di Worcester, 2014 (cit. on p. 42).
- [105] Unity (game engine) Wikipedia. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Unity_ (game_engine)#cite_note-Robertson-59. (Accessed on 09/20/2023) (cit. on p. 42).
- [106] Unity Manual: Order of execution for event functions. https://docs. unity3d.com/Manual/ExecutionOrder.html. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on pp. 45, 46).
- [107] Rebekka Volk, Julian Stengel, and Frank Schultmann. «Building Information Modeling (BIM) for existing buildings — Literature review and future needs». In: Automation in Construction 38 (2014), pp. 109-127. ISSN: 0926-5805. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2013.10.023. URL: https: //www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S092658051300191X (cit. on p. 47).
- [108] Elisa Dapino. Heritage Digital Twin. L'ambito urbano di Palazzo Carignano = Heritage Digital Twin. The urban area of ​​Palazzo Carignano. 2022 (cit. on p. 47).
- [109] XML Wikipedia. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/XML. (Accessed on 09/17/2023) (cit. on p. 48).
- [110] COLLADA files explained and how to use them / Adobe. https://www.adobe. com/creativecloud/file-types/image/vector/collada-file.html. (Accessed on 09/17/2023) (cit. on p. 48).
- [111] glTF Overview The Khronos Group Inc. https://www.khronos.org/gltf/. (Accessed on 09/17/2023) (cit. on p. 48).
- [112] Sergio Almajano Bravo. «DEVELOPMENT OF A GLTF FILE IMPORTER FOR UNREAL ENGINE 4». In: May 2019 (cit. on p. 48).
- [113] What is Design Thinking? | IxDF. https://www.interaction-design.org/ literature/topics/design-thinking. (Accessed on 09/17/2023) (cit. on p. 51).
- [114] What is Design Thinking? | IxDF. https://www.interaction-design.org/ literature/topics/design-thinking. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 52).

- [115] Rahmin Bender-Salazar. «Design thinking as an effective method for problem-setting and needfinding for entrepreneurial teams addressing wicked problems». In: *Journal of Innovation and Entrepreneurship* 12 (Apr. 2023). DOI: 10.1186/ s13731-023-00291-2 (cit. on p. 52).
- [116] International Classification of Functioning, Disability and Health: ICF. https: //iris.who.int/handle/10665/42407. (Accessed on 09/20/2023) (cit. on p. 52).
- [117] Luca Zaniboni and Jørn Toftum. «Indoor environment perception of people with autism spectrum condition: A scoping review». In: Building and Environment 243 (2023), p. 110545. ISSN: 0360-1323. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.buildenv.2023.110545. URL: https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0360132323005723 (cit. on p. 52).
- [118] Annamaria Recupero, Alessandra Talamo, Stefano Triberti, and Camilla Modesti. «Bridging Museum Mission to Visitors' Experience: Activity, Meanings, Interactions, Technology». In: Frontiers in Psychology 10 (2019). ISSN: 1664-1078. DOI: 10.3389/fpsyg.2019.02092. URL: https://www.frontiersin. org/articles/10.3389/fpsyg.2019.02092 (cit. on pp. 53, 54).
- [119] Indi Young. Mental Model: an affinity diagram of user's activities and goals matched with existing tools, services, and products. Rosenfeld Media, 2008. URL: https://books.google.it/books?hl=it&lr=&id=b5aLQ_cbC4kC& oi=fnd&pg=PP1&ots=giL-sKGacy&sig=nDxUa94BHZYFsO_HgRuCVV4VD60& redir_esc=y#v=onepage&q&f=false (cit. on p. 53).
- [120] Seray Olçay Gül. «The Combined Use of Video Modeling and Social Stories in Teaching Social Skills for Individuals with Intellectual Disability.» In: *Kuram Ve Uygulamada Egitim Bilimleri* 16 (2016), pp. 83–107. URL: https: //api.semanticscholar.org/CorpusID:151513805 (cit. on p. 57).
- [121] Jiyoon Park, Emily C. Bouck, and Ana Duenas. «Using Video Modeling to Teach Social Skills for Employment to Youth With Intellectual Disability». In: *Career Development and Transition for Exceptional Individuals* 43.1 (2020), pp. 40–52. DOI: 10.1177/2165143418810671. eprint: https://doi.org/10. 1177/2165143418810671. URL: https://doi.org/10.1177/2165143418810 671 (cit. on p. 57).
- [122] Cimen Acar, Elif Tekin Iftar, and Ahmet Yikmiş. «Effects of mother-delivered social stories and video modeling in teaching social skills to shildren with Autism Spectrum Disorders». In: *The Journal of Special Education* (Jan. 2016) (cit. on p. 57).
- [123] Sarah Omar and Azman Bidin. «The Impact of Multimedia Graphic and Text with Autistic Learners in Reading». In: Universal Journal of Educational Research 3 (Dec. 2015), pp. 989–996. DOI: 10.13189/ujer.2015.031206 (cit. on p. 62).
- [124] Use-case diagrams IBM Documentation. https://www.ibm.com/docs/en/ rational-soft-arch/9.6.1?topic=diagrams-use-case. (Accessed on 09/17/2023) (cit. on p. 63).

- [125] Unity's AR Foundation Framework / Cross platform augmented reality development software / Unity. https://unity.com/unity/features/arfoundation. (Accessed on 09/26/2023) (cit. on p. 85).
- [126] AR Tracked Image Manager component | AR Foundation | 5.1.0. https: //docs.unity3d.com/Packages/com.unity.xr.arfoundation@5.1/ manual/features/image-tracking.html. (Accessed on 09/28/2023) (cit. on p. 85).
- [127] Unity's AR Foundation Framework / Cross platform augmented reality development software / Unity. https://unity.com/unity/features/arfoundation. (Accessed on 09/28/2023) (cit. on p. 86).
- [128] Carleton Jones. «Jones, C. 1998 Interpreting the Perceptions of Past People. Archaeological Review from Cambridge 15(1), 7-22.» In: Archaeological Review from Cambridge 15 (Jan. 1998), pp. 7–22 (cit. on p. 90).
- [129] M.J. Scherer. «Virtual reality: consumer perspectives». In: *Cyberpsychology & Behavior* 1.3 (1998), pp. 183–196. DOI: 10.3109/09638289809166067 (cit. on p. 90).
- [130] H. Ring. «Is neurological rehabilitation ready for 'immersion' in the world of virtual reality?» In: *Disability and Rehabilitation* 20 (1998), pp. 98–101 (cit. on p. 90).
- [131] Faro Wiki di realtà virtuale e realtà aumentata VR AR e XR Wiki. https: //xinreality.com/wiki/Lighthouse. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 91).
- [132] SteamVR's "Lighthouse" for Virtual Reality and Beyond YouTube. https: //www.youtube.com/watch?v=xrsUMEbLtOs. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 91).
- [133] HTC VIVE Pro 2 User Manual (Page 56 of 90) / ManualsLib. https:// www.manualslib.com/manual/2292718/Htc-Vive-Pro-2.html?page=57# manual. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 91).
- [134] HTC_Vive_Tracker(2018)_Developer+Guidelines_v1.0.pdf. https://dl. vive.com/Tracker/Guideline/HTC_Vive_Tracker(2018)_Developer+ Guidelines_v1.0.pdf. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on pp. 91, 92).
- [135] Htc vive non of the buttons give any input? Platform & Builds / XR Development - Epic Developer Community Forums. https://forums.unreale ngine.com/t/htc-vive-non-of-the-buttons-give-any-input/68543/3. (Accessed on 09/25/2023) (cit. on p. 92).
- [136] Stacy Fritz and Michelle Lusardi. «Walking speed: The sixth vital sign». In: J Geriatr Phys Ther 32 (Jan. 2009), pp. 46–49 (cit. on p. 93).
- [137] SteamVR Plugin / Integration / Unity Asset Store. https://assetstore.uni ty.com/packages/tools/integration/steamvr-plugin-32647. (Accessed on 09/20/2023) (cit. on p. 93).

[138] Maria Shehade and Theopisti Stylianou-Lambert. «Virtual Reality in Museums: Exploring the Experiences of Museum Professionals». In: Applied Sciences 10.11 (2020). ISSN: 2076-3417. DOI: 10.3390/app10114031. URL: https: //www.mdpi.com/2076-3417/10/11/4031 (cit. on p. 95).